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          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, this

          3  meeting is called to order. Good morning, everyone.

          4  I am Archie Spigner, Chair of the Council's

          5  Committee on Housing and Buildings.

          6                 Today's oversight hearing is convened

          7  to allow for an assessment of the one and five-year

          8  plan of the New York City Housing Authority, also

          9  known as NYCHA.

         10                 The Committee is aware that many

         11  Council Members, including some members of this

         12  Committee, have been contacted by their constituents

         13  who are concerned about the meaning of this plan and

         14  the future of housing for New York's poorest

         15  residents.

         16                 Many people, including housing

         17  advocates and Council Members are concerned that

         18  NYCHA, as we now know it, will be drastically

         19  changed by recent federal laws.

         20                 NYCHA claims that many of these

         21  concerns are unfounded, as federal requirements

         22  allow NYCHA to make some local adjustments based on

         23  prior practices and needs.

         24                 However there are fears that external

         25  pressures are being placed on NYCHA to conform. As a
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          2  result of the quality housing and work

          3  responsibility act of 1998, all public housing

          4  authorities are required to annually submit a one

          5  and five-year plan.

          6                 The one and five-year plan that NYCHA

          7  just submitted to HUD was prepared pursuant to these

          8  requirements and is just the first of what will

          9  undoubtedly be years of such annual plans. At this

         10  hearing we hope to better understand the federal

         11  rules, how they affect NYCHA, what NYCHA's planning

         12  and problems with either the plan or the planning

         13  process.

         14                 We are all relieved that the first

         15  plan appears to maintain key NYCHA protocols and we

         16  appreciate NYCHA's modification of its original plan

         17  in response to comments from the public.

         18                 Anyone who wishes to give testimony

         19  at today's hearing should sign in with the

         20  Sergeant-At-Arms so that we will know that you are

         21  here and of your intentions, otherwise we will not

         22  be able to call on you.

         23                 We will begin today's hearing at just

         24  a slight departure from the rules. Usually we have

         25  the Administration on first, but departure from the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            6

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  rules to give an opportunity for former Council

          3  Member, now an outstanding member of the congress,

          4  whose tight schedule just forces her to dash away,

          5  so we are delighted to have Congresswoman Nydia

          6  Velazquez, who will be the first person to testify

          7  on today's topic.

          8                 CONGRESSWOMAN VELAZQUEZ: Thank you,

          9  Chairman Spigner and members of the Committee on

         10  Housing and Buildings for allowing me to provide my

         11  views into what I am sure everyone in this room will

         12  agree that this will be an ongoing process of

         13  oversight on the New York City Housing Authority for

         14  one-year and five-year plans.

         15                 As a congressional representative for

         16  New York's 12th Congressional District, an area that

         17  has some of the highest concentration of public

         18  housing residents in the City and as the only member

         19  of the New York City Delegation, Congressional

         20  Delegation, on the Subcommittee on Housing and

         21  Community Opportunity, ensuring that the City has

         22  adequate, safe and affordable housing is one of my

         23  top priorities.

         24                 As a result of the Quality Housing

         25  and Work Responsibility Act of 1998, NYCHA is under
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          2  less oversight from HUD. I would like to commend the

          3  Committee for recognizing this and holding this

          4  hearing to ensure that the proper oversight is

          5  maintained. This sort of attention is necessary to

          6  protect the interests of the recipients of NYCHA

          7  housing.

          8                 In particular, we must work together

          9  to encourage NYCHA to, one, create a resident

         10  advisory board that truly reflects and represents

         11  the community that it serves.

         12                 Two, fairly deconcentrate poverty by

         13  providing housing for the very poor in higher income

         14  neighborhoods, and three, provide the maximum amount

         15  of affordable housing for the very poor that it can.

         16                 On September 29th, NYCHA held a

         17  public hearing for residents to voice their opinions

         18  about its proposed annual and five-year plan. That

         19  night residents of NYCHA housing spoke up and

         20  demanded that NYCHA postpone submission of the plans

         21  to allow for more resident input.

         22                 In a response to this objection,

         23  NYCHA did postpone submission of its five-year and

         24  annual plans.

         25                 NYCHA also made substantive
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          2  concessions that will protect residents of its

          3  housing. One significant concession made by NYCHA,

          4  was to put in writing their commitment to continue

          5  ceiling rents.

          6                 Initially, NYCHA was intending to

          7  phase out ceiling rents and replace them with much

          8  higher flat rents.  Approximately, 28,000 families

          9  paying ceiling rents will have their rents

         10  dramatically increased in three years.

         11                 NYCHA's decision to continue ceiling

         12  rents displays its commitment to responding to the

         13  needs of residents.

         14                 However, some concerns still remain.

         15                 At the September 29th Public Hearing,

         16  we raised the issue that the Quality Housing and

         17  Work Responsibility Act requires that public housing

         18  authorities set up Resident Advisory Boards to

         19  oversee and assist with the creation of the annual

         20  and five-year plans. NYCHA did not satisfactorily

         21  comply with this requirement and in that it did not

         22  create a new board of residents that accurately and

         23  proportionately represented the residents.

         24                 Instead, it relied on the same

         25  governing structure the existed before: ICOP. ICOP
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          2  was never intended to be a policy-making body. It is

          3  too small to adequately represent over 600,000

          4  tenants. It was not created in accordance with HUD

          5  regulations for an equal and fair Resident Advisory

          6  Board.

          7                 In response to complaints, NYCHA has

          8  agreed to set up an elected resident advisory board

          9  that will more accurately represent residents. We

         10  should work to urge NYCHA to do this promptly.

         11                 Not only are there 109,000 names on

         12  the waiting list who live in NYCHA housing, the

         13  average wait for an apartment is five years.

         14                 Nevertheless, in its proposal to HUD,

         15  NYCHA states that it wants to give available housing

         16  to higher income families.

         17                 In its initial proposal, NYCHA

         18  intended to skip over low-income families who have

         19  been on the waiting list in order to provide housing

         20  to people who can't afford to pay more rent. NYCHA

         21  also intended to give larger apartments to higher

         22  income families to create incentives to move into

         23  public housing.

         24                 In response to its residents, NYCHA

         25  has agreed to drop the larger apartment incentive
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          2  plan for higher income applications. However,

          3  because NYCHA wants to deconcentrate poverty in

          4  low-income neighborhoods, it is giving apartments to

          5  higher-income families. But NYCHA is not making up

          6  for this by providing housing to lower income

          7  families in wealthier neighborhoods.

          8                 If you want to really have a balance

          9  and an established fair process in order to

         10  deconcentrate poverty, you have to do it both ways.

         11  It just cannot go into lower-income housing

         12  developments and bring in higher-income families. It

         13  goes the other way too.

         14                 In light of the pressing crisis in

         15  affordable housing for very low-income residents, it

         16  is important that NYCHA make housing available to

         17  very low-income tenants in higher income

         18  neighborhoods.

         19                 To achieve the goal of

         20  deconcentrating poverty, HUD's regulations required

         21  that the Public Housing authority set aside at least

         22  four out of ten units of the housing for low-income

         23  families. This is the bear minimum.

         24                 Unfortunately, this is all that NYCHA

         25  has chosen to set aside.
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          2                 This is a shocking decision, when we

          3  consider that there are 100,000 names on the waiting

          4  list for NYCHA apartments, 84 percent, and I repeat,

          5  84 percent of these families are low income.

          6  Forty-five percent of these families are extremely

          7  poor, with annual incomes of approximately 15,000

          8  and below for a family of three. Yet, NYCHA has

          9  chosen to only set aside the bear minimum of units

         10  required.

         11                 Rather than the bear minimum, NYCHA

         12  should be striving to provide affordable housing to

         13  as many needed families as it can.

         14                 As a member of the Congressional

         15  House Subcommittee on Housing and Community

         16  Opportunity, I hear a lot of information about

         17  public housing authorities across the country. It is

         18  recognized by most people in the industry that NYCHA

         19  is a cut above the rest. New York City has the honor

         20  of being one of the few cities with public housing

         21  that residents want to leave in.

         22                 NYCHA worked hard to earn this fine

         23  reputation. I want to help them keep it.

         24                 I ask the City Council to join me to

         25  ensure that NYCHA protects the needs of the
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          2  community it serves. NYCHA must establish a resident

          3  advisory board that truly reflects and represents

          4  the communities that it serves, fairly deconcentrate

          5  poverty by providing housing for the very poor in

          6  higher income neighborhoods, and not simply provide

          7  the bear minimum housing for the very poor that the

          8  law requires.

          9                 With the City Council of New York

         10  participating in the oversight of NYCHA's conduct,

         11  the residents of these communities stand a better

         12  chance of having NYCHA prepare a plan that solves

         13  the low-income housing crisis in New York City and

         14  of fulfilling its mission of providing affordable

         15  housing to low-income families.

         16                 Mr. Chairman, I want to thank you

         17  again for providing me this opportunity to be here

         18  today and express my views.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I want to thank

         20  you, Congressmember, Council lady, congress friend.

         21  Excuse me. I am having a lot of trouble, but I will

         22  get it right.

         23                 Anyway, as a member of the

         24  Congressional House Subcommittee that gives you an

         25  opportunity to receive information from around the
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          2  country, and your experience is probably similar to

          3  mine, with few exceptions. Most, whether they are

          4  large developments or small developments, there is

          5  just a common thread of failure throughout, and as

          6  you Stated, New York City is one of the few that has

          7  some degree of success that people still want to

          8  live in.

          9                 And I think that one of the reasons

         10  for that, in addition to stronger management, and

         11  rules and regs, might be the fact that there have

         12  not been a concentration of poverty.

         13                 And I must tell you, I started out,

         14  my experience, and I was telling some friends this

         15  morning that public house when I started out was

         16  viewed as transitional. I mean, you moved into

         17  public housing, you got your thing together, you

         18  saved your money and then you moved out into St.

         19  Albans or you moved out into Jamaica or wherever it

         20  was. It is different now, it is terminal. So, if you

         21  don't want to do market rate rent, or flat rent,

         22  whatever that is, and then you are going to have

         23  these people, these wealthy people staying in these

         24  public housing, because you can pay market rent and

         25  then if we want to take a project, if I can
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          2  remember, a project like Tomanock and Ravenswood,

          3  how the great design, and it is still a desirable

          4  place, but if you take these buildings, you have got

          5  to strive, in my opinion, to maintain a delicate

          6  social economic balance to maintain its viability.

          7  Otherwise, we are going to have what we had just

          8  across the river in New Jersey, that demolition of

          9  buildings, and in Chicago and that people no longer

         10  want to live in. It is a tough challenge.

         11                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN VELAZQUEZ: Mr.

         12  Chairman, if I may?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Yes.

         14                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN VELEZQUEZ: I just would

         15  like to remind you --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You certainly

         17  may.

         18                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN VELAZQUEZ: -- That when

         19  we do this, any assessment that we do and any

         20  approach that we need to put in place in terms of

         21  the management, we have to take into account many

         22  different factors. We live in New York City, one of

         23  the most expensive real estate markets in the

         24  nation, and right now people have been arrested

         25  protesting in terms of the City Administration
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          2  policy to homelessness, the homelessness situation

          3  in New York City. So, we need to strike a bond, and

          4  don't forget, we cannot forget the mission of public

          5  housing when it was created 60 years ago, it was to

          6  serve the most needed and the most vulnerable

          7  populations in our nation, and we have to continue,

          8  there has to be a commitment to continue to do that.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Then in being

         10  that as the primary mission, what is your view then

         11  on trying to attract or if you see a need for giving

         12  a priority to working families? I mean, there are

         13  working poor as well, and on the flat rent?

         14                 CONGRESSWOMAN VELAZQUEZ: What we need

         15  to do is we cannot -- I understand that because of

         16  the political climate in Washington and the fact

         17  that funding has been cut, that we need to increase

         18  revenues so that they continue to offer the services

         19  that we are providing, but at the same time we

         20  cannot do that at the expense of the most needed.

         21                 Remember, 85 percent of those 109,000

         22  who are in the waiting list, 85 percent are poor

         23  families. So, yes, we need to deconcentrate poverty,

         24  but at the same time we need to also empower tenants

         25  who live in public housing, and I have to say that
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          2  NYCHA has to do a better job in enforcing better

          3  regulations.

          4                 Every time we spend money, and for

          5  the most part, the money that comes to New York City

          6  and the NYCHA is federal money. Every time that

          7  there is modernization dollars to improve the

          8  housing development in our city, we have to make

          9  sure that we put into effect and section three, for

         10  example, that requires 30 percent of those monies

         11  that are spent in modernization dollars have to be

         12  for people to be hired, for tenants to be hired. So,

         13  if a contractor gets a contract to modernize a

         14  project, the list that the New York City Housing

         15  Authority should do, is to require for that

         16  contractor to hire 30 percent of the new hiring,

         17  being tenants from those public housing

         18  developments.

         19                 They were not doing it, and they

         20  know, and they are here, that I met with Chairman

         21  Frankel, and they created a new economic development

         22  initiative as a result of the pressure that I was

         23  putting into them.

         24                 So, whenever we put together a plan,

         25  we have to do it in a comprehensive way. We
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          2  deconcentrate poverty, not only by bringing in

          3  higher-income families, by also by empower the

          4  tenants who leave already in public housing.

          5                 So, we need to create jobs,

          6  meaningful jobs, and they have the means to do that,

          7  by requirement, by requiring every contractor to

          8  comply with section three.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: From my reading

         10  it said that they are doing a mandate of 15 percent.

         11  Now, you say the HUD mandate is 30 percent?

         12                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN VELAZQUEZ: It is 30

         13  percent, and they are not doing it. They have to do

         14  a better job.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         16                 Members of the Committee are here.

         17  Council Member Boyland, she is a member of the

         18  Housing and Buildings Committee. Council Member Mike

         19  Nelson is a member of the Housing and Buildings

         20  Committee. Council Member Margarita Lopez and

         21  Council Member Phil Reed.

         22                 Are there any questions for the

         23  Congressmember before she departs?

         24                 Congressmember, we have Council

         25  Member Lopez.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just want to

          3  express my admiration for my Congresswoman, who is

          4  here today. She and I share a district, I always

          5  follow her lead, and I think that the participation

          6  on the work that you have put in protecting public

          7  housing, public housing tenants and the policies

          8  that come from Washington to be implemented

          9  accurately here, is something that had to be

         10  admittable and it had to be said everywhere we can,

         11  and that is the reason I 100 percent support you.

         12                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN VELAZQUEZ: Thank you,

         13  Margarita.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         15  Congresslady, and I hope you make your next

         16  appointment.

         17                 ASSEMBLYWOMAN VELAZQUEZ: Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Continue to do

         19  good work for us in the Congress.

         20                 CONGRESSWOMAN VELAZQUEZ: Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, now,

         22  hopefully Mr. Martinez, Chairman Martinez, and

         23  members of the Housing Authority are here.

         24                 Chairman Martinez, will you have a

         25  seat, please. And any staff members that you would
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          2  have join you.

          3                 Welcome, Chairman Martinez, if you

          4  will identify yourself for the record and those that

          5  are with you, we will be delighted to hear your

          6  testimony.

          7                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chairman. My name is John Martinez, I am the

          9  Chairman of the New York City Housing Authority.

         10                 Sitting to my right is Steve Love who

         11  is our Legislative Coordinator on Federal Items, and

         12  once again, thank you very much for the opportunity

         13  to come here before your Committee and testify on

         14  the NYCHA agency plan, which was submitted to HUD on

         15  December 1st.

         16                 We were here just last month and

         17  during that time we did discuss with you several

         18  aspects of the plan so it is good to be able to come

         19  back and review some of those points with you and

         20  have time to expand on not only those points but

         21  others as well.

         22                 As I said, last month there had been

         23  a number of misconceptions and inaccuracies about

         24  the plan, which NYCHA's residents have been

         25  concerned about, which also need clarification for
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          2  this Committee and for the public.

          3                 We have held nine meetings throughout

          4  the five boroughs with a total of nearly 5,000 of

          5  NYCHA's residents to discuss the plan, answer

          6  questions and reassure our residents that we do not,

          7  and I emphasize, do not intend to sell their housing

          8  development.

          9                 Likewise, I hope my presentation

         10  today will help members of this Committee understand

         11  factually what we have done, what we propose to do

         12  and how we believe it is important for NYCHA's

         13  continued success.

         14                 As you have heard, the 1998 Housing

         15  Reform Act requires public housing authorities to

         16  engage in a planning process. Unfortunately, after

         17  we had spent months of preparation, on July 30th of

         18  this year, only ten days before we plan to release

         19  the narrative draft for review, HUD notified Housing

         20  Authorities around the country that the plan had to

         21  be submitted in a specific format.

         22                 As I described on November 12th, that

         23  format was not user-friendly and we believe

         24  contributed significantly to misunderstanding of

         25  what we were trying to accomplish.
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          2                 Now, a copy of the draft plan was

          3  originally given to every tenant association

          4  president, copies were made available for public

          5  inspection at all management offices and at nine

          6  community centers in all five boroughs.

          7                 It was available on the Internet for

          8  those who had a computer and for those who did not,

          9  we suggested the use of computers at local

         10  libraries.

         11                 Let me now go over a number of points

         12  that need to be reinforced, some of which we covered

         13  before but which are worth repeating.

         14                 First, there will be no change in the

         15  way NYCHA determines a family's rent. Whether a

         16  resident is on public assistance paying 30 percent

         17  of their income or paying a ceiling rent, the system

         18  we now use will remain the same.

         19                 For families with serious financial

         20  problems, including those whose five-year lifetime

         21  welfare benefits expire, we will provide a safety

         22  net, a new minimum rent program set at zero dollars.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Is that in

         24  perpetuity?

         25                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: The zero dollars?
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          2  No. What we will do is we will do is we will set the

          3  zero dollar rent and then we will continue working

          4  with them to facilitate their turning back into a

          5  job environment so they can then once again be fully

          6  employed and pay rent. It is not designed to provide

          7  essentially a free rent in perpetuity, this is

          8  really designed as a safety net.

          9                 To assist those who move from welfare

         10  to work, we will phase in the rent, and phasing in

         11  the rent is consistent with new federal requirements

         12  and the housing act. And what will happen is that

         13  rent increases associated with higher family income

         14  over a two-year period will see a phase-in. We do

         15  not want to inhibit the residents' will to work. He

         16  or she should keep as much of those new earnings as

         17  possible.

         18                 For the future, notwithstanding HUD's

         19  views to the contrary, and this is important to

         20  know, NYCHA is committed to preserving ceiling

         21  rents. HUD has mandated looking at a flat rent.

         22                 At the same time, we are also

         23  committed to looking at a greater mix of incomes in

         24  our developments, and this is known as our working

         25  family preference. But contrary to rumor, this does
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          2  not mean neglect of the poorest families, based on

          3  federal law, we will ensure that at least 40 percent

          4  of the apartments that become available will be

          5  rented to families whose incomes are no greater than

          6  30 percent of the area median income, which is about

          7  $14,000 for a family of three.

          8                 In the Section 8 program the poorest

          9  families will get no less than 75 percent of the

         10  turnover.

         11                 Pursuant to newly established federal

         12  requirements, we will encourage working families to

         13  move into 37 of our developments that have the

         14  highest concentration of households below the

         15  average family income in our development.

         16                 This approach is known as

         17  deconcentration. Based on feedback from our

         18  residents, we did eliminate the proposal to offer an

         19  additional bedroom as an added incentive for working

         20  families to move into developments with the highest

         21  concentration of very low-income residents.

         22                 Another unfounded apprehension about

         23  the agency plan concerns demolition and sale of

         24  developments. NYCHA is committed to preservation of

         25  its housing stock. The sole exception under the plan
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          2  is one building in Brooklyn at Prospect Plaza that

          3  has foundation problems and under the Hope 6 Program

          4  it will be torn down and replaced by new townhouses.

          5  Not one single unit will be lost.

          6                 Any family relocated during

          7  construction has an absolute right to return. NYCHA

          8  will also sell 12 single family HUD repossessed

          9  homes in Queens to Habitat for Humanity.

         10                 These houses have been vacant for a

         11  long time and are seriously deteriorated. They will

         12  be sold to low-income families with preference given

         13  to those already living in the community.

         14                 Finally, as part of the Hope 6

         15  program for Arvern and Edgemere in the Far Rockaway

         16  Community, NYCHA will sell an excess parking lot,

         17  again to Habitat for Humanity for construction of 24

         18  townhouses.

         19                 That is the total extent of

         20  demolition or sale. And as I said last month, all

         21  other rumors to the contrary are just that, rumors.

         22  Under the plan there will be more, not less housing

         23  for the poor. We are extremely concerned that for

         24  several years congress failed to provide any dollars

         25  to build new public housing. Still, we hope to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            25

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  increase the number of apartments for the poor, by

          3  stretching our existing subsidy in two ways.

          4                 One, we will enter into long-term

          5  leases for apartments and privately-owned buildings,

          6  what we call master leasing; and, two, we will enter

          7  into long-term agreements with private developers

          8  who are building market rate housing or mixed

          9  finance housing, and reserve apartments in those

         10  buildings for families served by our programs.

         11                 In both cases, applicants will come

         12  off our existing waiting list and their rents will

         13  be calculated in the same manner as other public

         14  housing residents.

         15                 One last aspect of the plan that has

         16  led to misinterpretation is the Resident Advisory

         17  Board. The composition of this year's Resident

         18  Advisory Board conformed to HUD's regulations and

         19  was confirmed in writing by HUD as conforming to

         20  those regulations.

         21                 Meeting those requirements was very

         22  important to us, but notwithstanding that fact, we

         23  will, in consultation with our residents, and that

         24  consultation has occurred already, increase the size

         25  of the Advisory Board for next year's plan.
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          2                 In fact, because I have already met

          3  with Housing advocates and representatives of a

          4  newly formed resident alliance to being that

          5  process, we are waiting for them to come back to us

          6  now with some of the initial planning that they want

          7  to put together.

          8                 As for this year, our residents gave

          9  us hundreds of comments and opinions, and we have

         10  made changes based on their reaction. Now that the

         11  plan is submitted, we believe that it will result in

         12  an overall improvement in the quality of life in our

         13  development. We welcome your questions, insights and

         14  suggestions, and while we appreciate the opportunity

         15  to be here, before I go to your questions, if I

         16  might, I would like to address three points of

         17  clarification that were provided in Congresswoman

         18  Velazquez' testimony, and we have had a very long,

         19  positive relationship with the Congresswoman, and we

         20  recognize that she clearly is one of the people who

         21  has pursued housing at the federal level.

         22                 The Congresswoman did indicate that

         23  NYCHA had intended to phase out the ceiling rents,

         24  and in fact what we have clearly tried to describe

         25  to everybody is that the flat rent concept is in,
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          2  the housing bill that the Congress adopted and what

          3  we are trying to do is to find a way to maintain the

          4  ceiling rent, which we believe makes more sense.

          5                 Secondly, I think it is very

          6  important to underscore, we didn't put together our

          7  Resident Advisory Board in violation of any

          8  regulations, HUD in fact in writing has given us

          9  verification that what we did is consistent with

         10  federal regulations. So that it is, I think,

         11  absolutely unfair for people to characterize the

         12  Resident Advisory Board that was actually involved

         13  in this process as having been construed in

         14  violation of federal regulations.

         15                 And thirdly, I think it is important

         16  to note that NYCHA is not advocating

         17  deconcentration, that is a requirement in the

         18  federal bill.

         19                 We have to comply with that federal

         20  bill. But how we go about doing that is where we are

         21  going to have a considerable amount of discussion

         22  because unlike some communities around the country,

         23  we do not have huge concentrations of very poor

         24  people.

         25                 In fact, if you look across all of
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          2  our populations, we don't have pockets, we have a

          3  fairly consistent and somewhat homogenous population

          4  from an income perspective than people will

          5  recognize, and part of that is because when we were

          6  created and we operated for years, we had about 65

          7  percent working families in our development. When

          8  the federal government --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You had 65

         10  percent?

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: That's correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You do not have

         13  it now.

         14                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We do not have it

         15  now. We are down to about 38 percent, which is up

         16  from where we were a couple of years ago when we

         17  were at about 30 percent working families. We

         18  believe it is critical to have an economic mix. It

         19  worked for years, and it wasn't until the federal

         20  government decided to create federal preferences

         21  that we began to see a deterioration in what had

         22  been a fairly stable population, and it was for very

         23  valid public purposes, but we have to find a balance

         24  point if this authority is going to survive in the

         25  future.
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          2                 So, with that, I would be happy to

          3  answer any questions that the members may have.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And other point

          5  she raised was that HUD mandates 30 percent of your

          6  contract workforce, or contractors responding or

          7  being awarded contracts to working in the three

          8  Housing Authority Developments, that the work force

          9  be made 30 percent of your residents, and your

         10  program, from what I see, requires 15 percent.

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Actually, that was

         12  another misconception. I was puzzled when I heard

         13  that. The Section 3 program has been in existence

         14  for over 20 years, but when congress created that

         15  program, and I emphasize it is a congressional

         16  program, it did not create a program that gave

         17  authority to the Housing Authorities to mandate that

         18  a contractor had to hire public housing residents.

         19  It said that the developer had to make a best faith

         20  effort.

         21                 Now, what we have done here at our

         22  Housing Authority in the last two years is actually

         23  create language that goes beyond what the current

         24  statute requires, and we impose a 15 percent set

         25  aside for the personnel cost of any contract so that
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          2  we can ensure moving forward that we will be able to

          3  provide jobs for our residents.

          4                 Now, that is not what federal law

          5  originally stated.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Does it state

          7  that now?

          8                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: It does not.

          9                 I think it would be very helpful,

         10  since there seems to be a lot of discussion about

         11  what people think the Section 3 program does, that

         12  if congress believes that it is important to

         13  mandate, it should be put in law. Or HUD should, by

         14  regulation, state that they want to mandate it, but

         15  until then Housing Authority's really have to take

         16  it upon themselves to try to force something that is

         17  not in law and does not have the force of

         18  regulation.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Are you being

         20  successful in attracting a sufficient number of

         21  reliable contractors who are willing to comply with

         22  the 15 percent mandate?

         23                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We started this

         24  program about 15 months ago, and the first 15

         25  contracts have in fact been executed and the work is
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          2  actually at various stages of progress. So, it is

          3  premature to say how successful it is, but we

          4  haven't had any difficulty because it is

          5  incorporated into the request for proposal language,

          6  we have not had any diminishment of people who have

          7  responded seeking work with the Housing Authority.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, one other

          9  question on the flat rent versus ceiling rent. Do

         10  you have any extreme examples of any abuse of the

         11  ceiling rent requirement? By that I mean, are there

         12  any wealthy people who have extraordinarily high

         13  income living in some of our developments?

         14                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: As the

         15  Congresswoman indicated, this is a very costly

         16  housing market. Wealthy people would not normally be

         17  found living in public housing.

         18                 But what we do have, ten years ago we

         19  did set a ceiling rent.  As an example, for a

         20  two-bedroom unit, that ceiling rent currently is at

         21  $495 a month.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Now, as I

         23  understand, the motivation behind the ceiling rent,

         24  based on the 30 percent mandate, you would be paying

         25  substantially more than the $495 or whatever the
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          2  ceiling rent was, based on 30 percent of your

          3  income.

          4                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: And in fact, what

          5  we have identified is that we do have individuals

          6  living in our developments, who are paying less than

          7  15 percent of their income because of the ceiling

          8  rent. And so what you have are people at the poorest

          9  end of the scale paying 30 percent of their income

         10  in accordance with federal law, and then because we

         11  have created a ceiling rent to encourage people to

         12  stay in public housing as their incomes go up, we do

         13  have people who are paying less than 15 percent.

         14                 Now, because this was set ten years

         15  ago, it would seem to be reasonable to take a look

         16  at those ceiling rents and to make a reasonable

         17  adjustment so that it was currently more reflective

         18  of changes in the market environment than ten years

         19  ago. But what would happen would not be an automatic

         20  increase from $495 to a new number, it would be

         21  something that we would work to create a transition.

         22  And, so, maybe a five-year transition. So, instead

         23  of somebody seeing a huge jump in their rent, it

         24  would gradually transition. But we think as a matter

         25  of equity it is unfair to ask the poorest of the
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          2  poor to pay 30 percent and to ask those individuals

          3  who have more resources not to pay 30 percent.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I agree fully

          5  with you, I am confused by the argument that the

          6  advocates for the poor, they want ceiling rents,

          7  they don't want flat rent. I don't understand. They

          8  would pay more, the math that you just gave us, the

          9  15 as opposed to the 30 or whatever the number is,

         10  it seems contrary to what the goal is.

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: What I think is

         12  necessary to put everything in context is the flat

         13  rent program that is proposed under the federal law

         14  is a program that gives the option to the resident.

         15  It doesn't mandate that they pay a flat rent.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: They can go and

         17  find housing somewhere else, if they can afford to

         18  pay it.

         19                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, that is not

         20  it.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: -- And there is

         22  a problem for someone who can't pay it.

         23                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: No, that is not

         24  even it. The flat rent program in public housing

         25  would say that if based on a survey of the current

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            34

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  market that we believed a reasonable flat rent would

          3  be, let's say $650 a month, then individuals who are

          4  paying currently 30 percent of their income, if they

          5  wanted, because they thought their income was going

          6  to go up, they could opt to go to the flat rent so

          7  that they would not have the added burden beyond 30

          8  percent, and if their income were to change, let's

          9  say that they did this in November of this year and

         10  then in April of next year their income changed and

         11  it went down, they would still have the ability to

         12  come in and say I want to go back to the 30 percent

         13  --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: The final

         15  question, and then I am going to move to Council

         16  Member Reed.

         17                 What is the difference again between

         18  flat and ceiling?

         19                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: The difference

         20  between flat and ceiling I can show you with a chart

         21  that I have, but very quickly.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Very quickly.

         23                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Flat rent is one

         24  that is set at some level related to market and

         25  people pay that rent immediately. There is no
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          2  calculation involved.

          3                 Ceiling rent, you peg the ceiling

          4  rent, people do not pay the ceiling rent until 30

          5  percent of their income rises to that level.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, I got you.

          7                 Okay, Council Member Reed.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.

          9  Chair.

         10                 And Chairman Martinez, I, for one,

         11  would like to see the chart of that.

         12                 Having been one of the people that

         13  advocated for this hearing, I want to both thank the

         14  Chair of our Committee for responding to several of

         15  us in requesting it, and certainly for your

         16  participation today. There are certainly several of

         17  us who serve on this Council who have at a minimum

         18  40 percent of our constituencies and you are their

         19  landlord. And some of us upwards of 60 percent. In

         20  the East Harlem part of my district I would say that

         21  75 or 70 percent of people that live in that

         22  neighborhood, you are the landlord, so these issues

         23  are catastrophic in people's lives, and I understand

         24  that in public policy perception precedes reality by

         25  month out into a community, but we are besieged with
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          2  questions and fears and apprehensions. And I also

          3  recognize that while this is the biggest public

          4  housing agency in the country, and, so, therefore,

          5  the management of it could sometimes be cumbersome

          6  because of the size and changing the rules for one

          7  thing means you have to look at the whole process

          8  down the road, there has not typically been a

          9  responsiveness that makes people feel comfortable

         10  that questions are going to be answered quickly.

         11                 In our particular case in East

         12  Harlem, and certainly in my district, we have had a

         13  very good working relationship with the Authority.

         14  Your people have been terrifically responsive to us,

         15  but some of the problems have been that, frankly,

         16  their hands are tied by certain rules that defy

         17  logic.

         18                 And, so, I have looked at this

         19  legislation that has come down, I was going to

         20  characterize it a little less generously, from

         21  Washington, I have tried to look at it as an

         22  opportunity, to look at ways that we can create

         23  change, not only in NYCHA, but recognizing, as I

         24  think the Chair said and all of my colleagues and

         25  all of us New York City representatives, the crisis
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          2  of housing, not just public housing, but the crisis

          3  of housing in our communities. And most of us, I

          4  think, or a significant number of us, are tenants

          5  ourselves. So, it is not like we are talking about

          6  something in a vacuum. I don't happen to live in

          7  NYCHA, but I have hell with my own landlord.

          8                 So, when people come in our office to

          9  talk about the thing that is most important in their

         10  lives is where they are living, we have to respond

         11  to that.

         12                 So, in saying that to you, I know you

         13  and I have talked about this issue of transfers, of

         14  people who are living in the developments now, who

         15  may be in apartments that are no longer appropriate

         16  for them in the sense that they are too large, we

         17  have also talked about the issue of people who have

         18  significant health issues and concerns, and their

         19  needs to move or their family has grown and now they

         20  need larger apartments.

         21                 And I have not figured out in all of

         22  these new things, the new policies that we have to

         23  sort of implement, and, again, I want to say thank

         24  you. I think that your responsiveness to the public

         25  pressure to re-revisit this has lent us all, give us
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          2  a sense that there is a responsiveness on the part

          3  of NYCHA and that we may be able to work together on

          4  this.

          5                 But how are you addressing, or how

          6  are we able to -- I know in the hearing I think we

          7  had last month you said that you were looking at

          8  changing the rules of the transfers; is that

          9  correct?

         10                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: That's correct.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: So, how does

         12  that play into what we are seeing here now in terms

         13  of rent regulations, et cetera, et cetera?

         14                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, in terms of

         15  rent regulations, the transfer policy doesn't have

         16  any impact on the rent regulations. Rent is

         17  calculated based on the 30 percent, and it is a

         18  federal statutory requirement.

         19                 The transfer policy that we currently

         20  are working under is a policy that is incorporated

         21  into what we call our TSAP, Tenant Selection

         22  Assignment Plan. That plan was put together as a

         23  result of a federal court order.

         24                 A number of years ago NYCHA was sued

         25  under allegations that there was steering occuring
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          2  in terms of where people were being housed.

          3                 We had under the supervision of the

          4  court a requirement to put together a planning

          5  process with certain levels of priority that would

          6  remove any subjectivity and completely become an

          7  objective process.

          8                 In order to modify the plan, staff

          9  has to go through and prepare recommendations for

         10  the Board and the Board then will take it apart to

         11  determine whether or not from a policy perspective

         12  what they are proposing is consistent with what we

         13  believe we need to go.

         14                 So, right now in the one and

         15  five-year plan there is as one of the attachments, a

         16  copy of the Tenant Selection Assignment Plan as it

         17  currently is construed. And there have been some

         18  modifications in that plan having to do with the

         19  priorities under which people can transfer as an

         20  example.

         21                 But as I have expressed to you in the

         22  past, one of the difficult things about transfers

         23  beyond people being able to fit into the priorities,

         24  is the fact that too often individuals will select,

         25  as an example in your case, they want to transfer to
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          2  a development in Manhattan.

          3                 Manhattan is the most desirable area

          4  right now in terms of where people want to reside

          5  and our turnover in those units is the lowest that

          6  we have in the system.

          7                 Consequently, if somebody says I want

          8  to transfer and I want to do it only in Manhattan,

          9  they may have to wait longer for an appropriate unit

         10  to ever come to the surface, and if they were

         11  willing to say, well, I would live in Brooklyn or

         12  the Bronx or somewhere else. And, so, it is not

         13  often going to be the issue of whether or not the

         14  policy is there, as often the lifestyle choice and

         15  the geographical choice made by the resident in

         16  terms of what they want to do in terms of their

         17  future housing.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Well, I can't

         19  argue all of that, but when you say Manhattan, I

         20  think the discussion that we have had, and I don't

         21  want to make it too parochial, just trying to make

         22  it large enough to, I think reflective of all of my

         23  colleagues that are working with this situation, the

         24  transfers that we are typically talking about are

         25  within individual developments. I mean, I am in
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          2  Manhattan. So, I don't have anybody I want to move

          3  into Manhattan, I have people in Manhattan.

          4                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I understand.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: And typically

          6  they want to stay in the development, as most people

          7  whether they are living in public housing or private

          8  housing, they want to stay typically in the

          9  neighborhoods or the communities that they are in.

         10                 We have some instances of domestic

         11  violence and child abuse where people need to be

         12  moved away from that environment, but that is not

         13  the most common situation.

         14                 So, what I am asking, I guess what I

         15  am hearing you say is that, other than the rent

         16  guidelines that are imposed by this new plan, there

         17  is in the plan a new statement of guidelines for

         18  transfer; is that what I heard you say?

         19                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: What we have done

         20  is we have looked at some of the policies, the

         21  priorities that are given to people who are seeking

         22  transfers, and we have had some modifications made

         23  and they are in the plan, which is one of the

         24  attachments to the five-year plan.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Do those include
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          2  the issues of --

          3                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: As it relates to

          4  your specific illustration of somebody in a building

          5  wanting to transfer to another unit within the same

          6  building, one of the things that are required --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: In the same

          8  development?

          9                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: The same

         10  development building it doesn't matter because one

         11  of the --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Yes, it does.

         13                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, my

         14  perspective it doesn't, in that the real issue is

         15  going to be when they put in their transfer request,

         16  and how many other people have in the transfer

         17  requests ahead of them, because we do do it in terms

         18  of a sequence. We do not jump people just because

         19  somebody has decided that they now want to transfer,

         20  we may have 20 people in front of them in that

         21  particular development that want to transfer as

         22  well.

         23                 And then we have to determine whether

         24  or not the appropriate-sized apartment becomes

         25  available. So there are a whole series of dynamic
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          2  variables that are at play in there and it is not

          3  simply somebody says, well I know an apartment is

          4  vacant in the development and why can't I move

          5  there, well it may be because there are 12 people

          6  already in line for a similar sized apartment before

          7  them.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I will continue

          9  this in the second round. Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         11  Lopez.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Chairman

         13  Martinez, I want to thank you publicly for inviting

         14  me to a meeting that took place in your facilities

         15  during this week, and I want to publicly acknowledge

         16  that invitation, because until you invited me to

         17  that meeting, prior to that I have been seeing in

         18  NYCHA an individual who doesn't have the right to

         19  represent my community. And your action of inviting

         20  me to that meeting is something that I respect very

         21  much, and I congratulate you for that, not because

         22  you invited me, but because you took a stand as the

         23  Chairman that understands that as an elected

         24  official, who was duly elected by my community, has

         25  the right to go to meetings and listen to the issues
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          2  that affect my community. For that reason I

          3  congratulate you.

          4                 The second thing I would like to say

          5  publicly here also is to congratulate you for

          6  listening to the petitions that tenants put in place

          7  during the first meeting at the Pace University

          8  Theater, and subsequently.

          9                 Prior to that, not answers, no

         10  listening was occurring. Prior to that I can tell

         11  you that my office tried to acquire information from

         12  NYCHA and that information was never given to me.

         13                 It is through my involvement and

         14  subsequently the involvement of my colleagues in my

         15  area and other areas in the City, that the NYCHA

         16  residents were notified of the hearings that were

         17  going to take place.

         18                 No notification got to my tenants. If

         19  this happened in other areas, that is another story.

         20  But I can tell you that in Baruch Houses, Jacob

         21  Reese Houses, Lillian Wall Houses, Maria Viseti,

         22  Compos Plaza, Smith Houses, LaGuardia Houses,

         23  Vladick Houses, Rutger Houses (phonetically

         24  spelled), there was not a single notification given

         25  to any of those tenants about the proposed plan,
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          2  about how this was taken place, or what this was

          3  about. And it was not until I became involved in

          4  this that the beginning of a movement occurred in my

          5  area.

          6                 The fact that you are willing to

          7  listen, and the fact that you are willing to

          8  integrate the recommendations that we gave you over

          9  the process is commendable and I respect you for

         10  that.

         11                 Then saying that, I want to ask you

         12  two questions, in regard to the jobs for people in

         13  the NYCHA complex: I understand that that regulation

         14  is a very complicated one, a very vague one. But my

         15  question to you is, prior to you coming into NYCHA,

         16  this regulation was in place, vague or not vague,

         17  the regulation was in place, in whatever form it

         18  was. I can tell you that two years ago, when Vladick

         19  Houses, which is one of them in my area, was ready

         20  for some construction to occur, a series of meetings

         21  happened in which I was involved. At that time the

         22  issue of hiring tenants was raised, and I can notify

         23  you right here right now, that in the case of that

         24  particular development, the enforcement of that

         25  regulation was not put in place. NYCHA has that
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          2  regulation, vague regulation as it was, it was not

          3  put in place. And it is not until the meetings took

          4  place demanded by the tenants, that that regulation

          5  began to be looked at. And through the participation

          6  of Congresswoman Velazquez, that regulation began to

          7  be looked at in order to increase the amount of

          8  tenants who are hired.

          9                 When that happened, I have a tenant

         10  who was hired by the contractor from NYCHA, and this

         11  person lived in that complex. Somebody from the

         12  administration from Vladick Houses demanded that

         13  that person be removed and not get the job. I have

         14  to intervene in that case. Finally the person was

         15  hired, and it was on the goodwill of the contractor

         16  that did it, it was not because it was pushed by

         17  NYCHA staff or by NYCHA personnel. And I am giving

         18  you that example to tell you, that although as you

         19  say the regulation is made, the regulation is not

         20  enforced, Mr. Chairman.

         21                 And I hope that you take a very hard

         22  look at it, because I have been notified now that

         23  you are planning to do so, in the case of Lillian

         24  Wall where construction is going to begin.

         25                 What are the plans in reality about
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          2  implementing this policy that will create a lot of

          3  opportunity for NYCHA residents if this policy is

          4  implemented for real.

          5                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, directly in

          6  response, yesterday I had a meeting with the entity

          7  within NYCHA that will be held responsible for

          8  monitoring and enforcing the Section 3 program.

          9                 We have created two distinct levels

         10  of the Section 3 program. Contracts that are up to

         11  $500,000 are contracts that we are going to, for our

         12  purposes, view as falling under the existing federal

         13  regulation. That means that it is a best faith

         14  effort on the part of the contractor, but we are

         15  going to require the contractor to submit business

         16  plan 2, as it is going to illustrate how they intend

         17  to comply with the Section 3 using a best faith

         18  approach.

         19                 We can't force them to hire but we

         20  believe that by telling them if you don't give us a

         21  plan in writing that describes the reasonable steps

         22  that you are going to take, that you are not going

         23  to get any payments under your first draw until you

         24  submit the plan, and then we are going to monitor

         25  that plan.
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          2                 For all contracts of $500,000 or

          3  more, we are creating a mandatory provision that

          4  will go into every contract, based on a provision

          5  that is being put in each request for a proposal,

          6  and that will state that if you receive the bid

          7  package and you are successful, you will then be

          8  required to set aside 15 percent of what will be

          9  your personnel cost because in construction about 50

         10  percent is material, and about 50 percent will go to

         11  personnel. You have to set aside no less than 15

         12  percent to hire our residents. The number of people

         13  hired will depend on the kind of job it is, and the

         14  type of job that they are hiring people into, but we

         15  believe that by taking a step that is more stringent

         16  than the current regulation, that we will be able to

         17  ensure that we get more jobs for our residents,

         18  which we believe is appropriate.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: So, are you

         20  going to make those documents available to the

         21  elected officials, to the public? Meaning the plan

         22  that you are speaking about, in regard to make clear

         23  what are the plans that they have to hire residents?

         24                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I can certainly

         25  make available to any elected official a copy of the
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          2  packet that every contractor will have to look at

          3  and will have to fill out in order to work with us

          4  under contract that will have construction

          5  throughout our developments, and the reporting

          6  requirements as we begin to get feedback as people

          7  actually do the work will be happy to share the

          8  reports, because this is a new process, as I

          9  indicated. This is something that just began about

         10  15 months ago and we are just beginning to see work

         11  actually starting under these first 15 contracts

         12  that were executed and now we are moving into the

         13  next phase.

         14                 I am not going to see an immediate

         15  turn-around of data, if you will, for these

         16  contracts for probably another nine months, so that

         17  it will be difficult to ascertain how much

         18  compliance is going on until they actually get into

         19  the work. But as we begin to do new requests for

         20  proposals each RFP that goes out there clearly

         21  states you must set aside 15 percent of your labor

         22  budget for purposes of hiring our residents.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Are you

         24  planning to have job fairs in the different

         25  developments where construction is going to happen?
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          2  And if you do, if you plan to do that, would you

          3  notify the elected officials of the area?

          4                 I know that Senator Connor, I know

          5  that Assemblyman Sander and Congresswoman Nydia

          6  Velazquez, myself, Kathryn Freed, a Councilwoman

          7  here, all of us would be more than glad to help on

          8  that effort.

          9                 We have done it in the past for other

         10  possible jobs, and the only way that you are going

         11  to be able to fulfill those regulations is if you

         12  had the bodies willing to take advantage of those

         13  jobs.

         14                 In the past, some of the explanations

         15  that were given to me for that particular regulation

         16  not being fulfilled was that people were not

         17  available for the jobs they didn't have the skills

         18  to be able to be hired at the moment that these jobs

         19  come through. Therefore, one of the pieces that you

         20  need to put in place is prepare the group of people

         21  who can be hired in advance of those contracts being

         22  in place, because by the time the contract is in

         23  place, nobody will be able to hire because they

         24  don't have the qualification. Then this has to be

         25  prepared in advance.
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          2                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We are taking

          3  every step that is reasonable within our control to

          4  identify the types of skills that people will need

          5  in future contracts and to see if there is a way

          6  that we can reasonably put together a training

          7  program to help people develop the necessary skills.

          8                 Under current federal dollars that

          9  are available as an example under the welfare to

         10  work program, we are trying to work with the City's

         11  Department of Human Resources Administration to

         12  access as many of those training dollars as possible

         13  so that we can facilitate that. Certainly you can

         14  appreciate how difficult it is to put together a

         15  very comprehensive education program when we are

         16  really a housing provider and landlord, not an

         17  education provider and not a social service agency.

         18                 We try to step into these voids and

         19  to fulfill that need into every instance possible,

         20  but we recognize that we do have some limitations.

         21  Some of them are financial, and some of them are

         22  just programmatic. But we have made a commitment, we

         23  are trying to identify ways that when we go out to,

         24  as an example of Vladick, that we can give the

         25  contractor a list of names of people with certain

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            52

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  skills, and we can certify that those skills

          3  actually exist, so that when the contractor calls

          4  them in for an interview, there will be no question

          5  about whether or not they can do the job.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: My last

          7  question is with regard to Baruch houses. In the

          8  region of land that you put out there, was included

          9  as Baruch Houses as one of the developments where

         10  you are going to implement some innovative ideas. My

         11  understanding of those innovative ideas was that you

         12  were planning to bring mixed housing in there to a

         13  method of building a new building. Correct me if I

         14  am wrong, and if I am right, please, can you explain

         15  how that is going to be, where that is going to be,

         16  in what area at Baruch Houses is that you are

         17  planning to build this building?

         18                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, to start

         19  with, the concept that we were looking at is that

         20  when many of our developments were built years ago,

         21  they were built in what was called a super block

         22  configuration, and under the City's building laws

         23  there is what is called a floor area ratio which

         24  determines how many units you can have in

         25  relationship to the total amount of acreage that you
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          2  have. We have never built our residential

          3  developments and these superblock configurations to

          4  the full zoning capacity. We have created a setting

          5  that is very unusual in New York City because it is

          6  truly more like a park setting than any other high

          7  density multi-family residential complex around the

          8  City.

          9                 What we would like to do is to take

         10  advantage of the fact that we could add some units,

         11  not build to the full capacity but add some units

         12  and not do it in a single building.

         13                 We would like to be able to create

         14  some diversity, some lower rise housing scattered

         15  throughout the development and incorporate into that

         16  approach some of the retail and commercial that was

         17  lost when these buildings were built, and has

         18  necessitated our residents to travel long distances

         19  in order to get some of the basic support systems

         20  that they need, milk and break and butter or they

         21  want to go to a dry cleaner or they want to go to a

         22  beauty shop or a barber shop and they have to travel

         23  father, we want to incorporate that retail and

         24  commercial. Part of what we are looking at is also

         25  quality of life issues. That particular development
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          2  is completely open to the world. People can access

          3  it at any point around the entire perimeter. We

          4  would like to create space, be able to incorporate

          5  pedestrian access points. Part of that is by the

          6  incorporation of retail and commercial so that

          7  people can't just walk in, they have to go through

          8  defined access points, giving our ability then to

          9  ensure the residents have more control over defined

         10  areas of space, which from the Police Department's

         11  perspective will enhance the ability to reduce crime

         12  in some areas, and as we look at the whole package

         13  we believe that we can provide jobs, we can provide

         14  a more economically diverse and atmosphere, we can

         15  provide opportunities for life support to our

         16  residents, and one of the most important things

         17  ultimately when we look at this is earlier I

         18  mentioned a working family preference, right now, if

         19  we are bringing working families in, as you know,

         20  for every two vacancies one goes to a working family

         21  and one goes to a person off of our waiting list, if

         22  I can create that kind of economic diversity by

         23  building some new units, I don't have to bring

         24  working families in, so that all of the units in the

         25  existing public housing will remain available to
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          2  people on our waiting list, as opposed to going

          3  under the one for two.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And you do have

          5  a plan to develop new housing in Baruch Houses?

          6                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I have a plan to

          7  develop new housing in a number of areas around the

          8  City. Where we start, I can't tell you at this

          9  point.

         10                 Baruch was offered up as an example

         11  of what we could in fact do, and if we can pull

         12  everything together, we would like to explore that

         13  as being an option, but we understand to do that we

         14  would like to meet with elected officials, we would

         15  like to meet with our residents, we would like to

         16  meet with other community groups to talk about what

         17  is possible, what their response would be, the

         18  advantages, the disadvantages.

         19                 We are not naive about doing this.

         20  We understand these are very important issues, but I

         21  think the most critical issue is that there is

         22  absolutely nothing in what we are proposing that

         23  will lead to the sale of any of the housing at

         24  Baruch. We are not trying to convert this to market

         25  housing developments, we are not trying to force any
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          2  of our residents out. This is designed to create

          3  long-term economic viability for the authorities so

          4  that when all is said and done, we can look back and

          5  say we still have 181,000 subsidized units in the

          6  City.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: As often as you

          8  are going to say that, Chairman, there are still

          9  going to be rumors that they are selling, they are

         10  changing.

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Of course.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I hear it all

         13  the time.

         14                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I can't change the

         15  rumor mill.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         17  Boyland.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Thank you.

         19                 Welcome, Mr. Chairman. How are you?

         20                 We have had extensive meetings

         21  pertaining to the Hope 6 projects in my office and

         22  the elected officials have met with you on that

         23  issue, and I will ask that question last. But I want

         24  to get back to the question of the ceiling rent and

         25  the flat rent issue.
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          2                 Knowing in New York City housing

          3  never depreciates, it always appreciates, and if you

          4  are looking at the flat rent system, market value,

          5  in my area people are paying up to $800, $900,

          6  $1,000 for an apartment, a month for an apartment,

          7  is this really the equivalent of doing a ceiling

          8  rent with the flat rent? How are we expected, most

          9  of our tenants and participants in the public

         10  assistance programs to really, with you know,

         11  welfare to workfare program, who do we expect them

         12  to exist if we give the option of a flat rent piece

         13  versus a ceiling? I am trying to figure out the

         14  rationale.

         15                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: What is extremely

         16  important -- rationale I don't know -- I didn't

         17  create the concept of a flat rent, that comes from

         18  Washington, D.C. But the reality is that a flat rent

         19  under the current regulatory environment, if it were

         20  to be created, it would be at the auction of the

         21  resident. I can't tell any of our residents you must

         22  pay a flat rent.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, so they

         24  have the option.

         25                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: They have the
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          2  option at all times. The idea behind a ceiling rent

          3  is one that we believe is very important, because

          4  what it does is it tells a family, if you are in a

          5  situation where your income is going to continue to

          6  rise, at some point the calculation of 30 percent of

          7  your income equals what rent you pay will come to a

          8  halt and that you will never pay more than a defined

          9  number. Now, never is not intended to be absolute

         10  infinity. It means that for some defined period your

         11  rent will be pegged at the ceiling rent and even if

         12  you would have been paying $150 more based on 30

         13  percent of your income, you pay the ceiling rent.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay. I am

         15  still trying to figure out how we expect -- you

         16  know, I am not a big fan of the WEP program, I am

         17  not a big fan of a lot of the programs that are

         18  pushing people off of public assistance into some of

         19  these very low-paying jobs that if they are making

         20  14,000, 17,000 a year from public assistance, they

         21  make 20, I mean, you know, 19 with these new

         22  programs. How are they supposed to survive. Those

         23  are my concerns.

         24                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We are not

         25  changing the way that we calculate the rent. If they
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          2  make 15,000, they make 50,000, they pay 30 percent

          3  of their rent or their income for rent until they

          4  reach the ceiling rent. And so the only time that I

          5  could envision somebody might want to request a flat

          6  rent, would be if their rent or their income was

          7  going up so quickly that they wanted to peg their

          8  rent at a certain number because they believed that

          9  if they pegged it there, that for at least a

         10  two-year period they would be able to stay at that

         11  rent as opposed to paying a higher rent because

         12  their income has gone up.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Exactly. So,

         14  you have working families that when they see

         15  programs such as this, they no longer want to stay

         16  in their environment, and you spoke extensively

         17  about trying to balance out the New York City

         18  Housing Program in terms of having a mixture of

         19  public assistance, with working families. And I am

         20  just trying to figure out the attraction, we want to

         21  attract people to have that mixture in the New York

         22  City Housing Authority in the buildings, but I was

         23  just trying to figure out exactly what the rationale

         24  was.

         25                 The second question I have is, the
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          2  Section 8 applications, where are they? Do they

          3  still exist? Is this just an ideal from before --

          4                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: No, Section 8, we

          5  have a defined number of Section 8 certificates and

          6  vouchers. That number is not going to go up. In

          7  fact, it probably will over the next three or four

          8  years go down slightly because of a recalculation of

          9  a formula that Hud used to use.

         10                 But the reality is that the way

         11  Section 8 is currently allocated, we have certain

         12  priorities, and the priorities are that if a family

         13  or an applicant is homeless, a victim of domestic

         14  violence, or is participating in a criminal

         15  investigation and is an intimidated witness, where

         16  their life has been put under some kind of a threat

         17  --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: That is a

         19  priority case.

         20                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Those are the

         21  highest priorities that we have and those

         22  individuals are given Section 8 certificates first

         23  before we go to others on the list.

         24                 Currently, given the turnover that we

         25  have in the program and the number of people who set

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            61

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  those three priorities, generally speaking, that is

          3  all we are able to assist under the Section 8

          4  program.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay. And my

          6  last question, we will get back to the Section 8

          7  piece because we have a huge issue now with families

          8  in shelters and affordable housing with them, that

          9  we will have time to elaborate on that the next time

         10  that you come.

         11                 The last piece is the Hope 6 project.

         12  We are receiving some questions about the placement

         13  of the resident; can you respond to that?

         14                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I am not sure what

         15  you mean by placement. Are you talking about the

         16  temporary displacement during construction?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, we try to do

         19  a couple of things. One is, when we know that we are

         20  going to begin construction in an area, we begin

         21  holding units vacant when people leave so that we

         22  have units to move people into when construction is

         23  going to occur, so the people don't have to

         24  temporarily relocate elsewhere.

         25                 If we don't have enough units, we
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          2  then give them the highest priority to relocate to

          3  another development in the City, with an absolute

          4  right to return when construction is completed.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, so you

          6  are offering them the option to move to other

          7  buildings, and then the housing that is being

          8  provided with the economic development in the whole

          9  Hope 6 plan, they have the first option to move into

         10  those houses?

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: They have an

         12  absolute right to come back to the development, and

         13  we are not going to lose a single unit there as a

         14  result of the demolition of the one building,

         15  because we are building new units out there in the

         16  community.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Including the

         18  day care center.

         19                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, the day care

         20  center is not housing.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: It was part

         22  of the Hope 6 plan.

         23                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: It is still going

         24  to be there.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BOYLAND: Okay, thank
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          2  you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

          4  Nelson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chair.

          7                 Chair Martinez, welcome. Mr.

          8  Simbowitz, Mr. Love, nice to see you again.

          9                 I will get provincial in a minute,

         10  but could you elaborate at all as far as the

         11  requirement to perform eight hours of public

         12  service, where that is in the pipeline right now? Is

         13  that coming down from HUD?

         14                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: That is a federal

         15  requirement. It is not something that we have

         16  imposed. We are wondering how it is going to be

         17  monitored and adequately addressed from their

         18  perspective. But we understand we are going to have

         19  an obligation to require people to perform eight

         20  hours of public service. We are still looking for

         21  guidance on exactly how they expect us to be able to

         22  monitor and enforce that.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Are they

         24  supposed to be notifying you about this? Or are you

         25  supposed to be requesting it from them?
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          2                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: There has not been

          3  a final rule issued yet, so I don't know exactly

          4  what HUD's proposal is in its final state.

          5                 All we have been notified is that

          6  there will be a requirement for eight hours of

          7  community service.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: All right.

          9  Back to provinciality, Sheepshead Nostrand Housing,

         10  it is my understanding that even last year they had

         11  a problem with heat and I see these old people,

         12  little old ladies, little old men and whatever and

         13  it is really very sad that they complain to me that

         14  they are not receiving heat.

         15                 As a matter of fact, besides being

         16  rude when I was on the phone a few times, I was in

         17  touch with my office, between a Penny and a Mr.

         18  Lamar, to find out what is going on exactly, and it

         19  seems to be there is something called the steam

         20  separators that needs to be repaired. I don't know

         21  how difficult it is to get and how difficult that is

         22  to actually repair, and meanwhile, the people there

         23  still don't have any heat, and it is ongoing.

         24                 I would appreciate it if you would

         25  take this into a priority situation, although it has
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          2  been very mild lately, it has been very cold a few

          3  weeks ago, and no doubt it is going to get very cold

          4  very shortly once again, and if you can imagine

          5  these poor people there literally huddling up and we

          6  don't want them keeping the oven on and coats on and

          7  sleeping that way and you don't want them going to

          8  the bathroom in the middle of the night in that type

          9  of an atmosphere. I really would appreciate it if

         10  that would be looked into seriously today by your

         11  office.

         12                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Let me assure you,

         13  when I return to my office I will call the Borough

         14  Director and have them look into it immediately.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Thank you very

         16  much, Mr. Chair.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         18  Malave-Dilan.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: How are

         20  you? As a result of the one and five-year plan, will

         21  there be any increase in units under your authority?

         22                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: When you say

         23  increase in units, if we are able to move into new

         24  construction, as I was describing earlier at Baruch

         25  Houses, there will be an increase in the total
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          2  number of units. They may not all necessarily be

          3  addressing native public housing.

          4                 What we have currently from the

          5  federal government is the requirement that we cannot

          6  increase the number of public housing units, so that

          7  what we are trying to do is work more

          8  corroboratively with the private sector, so that

          9  rather than the Housing Authority owning units, we

         10  have access to units through contractual agreements.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: So, in

         12  essence what you will be doing there is you will be

         13  leasing units and then renting them out? You will be

         14  sort of like a middle person?

         15                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: For example, if

         16  someone comes in and agrees to come in and build

         17  units, one of the things that could happen would be

         18  some number of those units would be by contract set

         19  aside for public housing occupants for a term of

         20  let's say no less than 20 years. And that would give

         21  us the ability to ensure that we could add

         22  additional units in terms of availability for people

         23  on our waiting list, without violating federal

         24  requirements, that we cannot increase the number of

         25  public housing units we have in the City.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Okay, I

          3  believe under the same area you indicate in your

          4  testimony that you will be increasing housing for

          5  the poor.

          6                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: And that

          8  is under this same plan, the master leasing plan?

          9                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes. The master

         10  leasing plan, when we talked earlier about our

         11  working family preference, what we are trying to do

         12  is bring in working families, one working family for

         13  every two vacancies. We want to at that point

         14  recognize that the subsidy that would have been paid

         15  to that unit is no longer necessary because

         16  generally the working family requires a minimal

         17  subsidy or no subsidy.

         18                 So, we want to repackage those

         19  dollars, and then working with HUD and the private

         20  sector, lease units that would then become public

         21  housing by contract, and we would then be able to

         22  pay a subsidy to the private landlord.

         23                 Now, the reason that we have not

         24  increased the number of public housing units, even

         25  though those units will be treated as public
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          2  housing, is because where we have working families

          3  we will deprogram them, if you will, from being

          4  construed as public housing. The working families

          5  coming in qualified for public housing income-wise,

          6  but subsidy-wise do not need additional dollars to

          7  help them pay the rent.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MALAVE-DILAN: Okay.

          9                 All right, just one last comment. I

         10  just want to say that I do agree with your comment

         11  in regard to the concern that the Congress has not

         12  allocated additional dollars for new public housing.

         13  I share that view with you.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         16  Freed.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chair.

         19                 And I apologize for not being here

         20  earlier. Maybe some of the things I have gone over

         21  and I have questioned you have already mentioned,

         22  but one of the things I am concerned about,

         23  particularly under the Quality Housing and Work

         24  Responsibility Act, is that right now I have

         25  numerous families that are doubled and trippled up,
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          2  and they are all desperate to get into their own

          3  units, and, you know, we are not talking about

          4  someone that it is a luxury, we are talking where

          5  they are massively doubled up and they have a real

          6  problem where families aren't getting along

          7  together.

          8                 What happens to those families under

          9  the new Public Housing Act?

         10                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, nothing

         11  happens to them. What we are trying to do is

         12  increase the emphasis in terms of priority to give

         13  opportunities for those families to transfer into

         14  appropriate-sized units.

         15                 When we have reached the point that a

         16  family is that overcrowded, we have to recognize

         17  that we don't have that many larger apartments in

         18  the entire system to accommodate very large

         19  families.

         20                 So, what we did two years ago at the

         21  Authority was make an effort to see if we could

         22  offer as an alternative Section 8 certificates to

         23  these grossly over-crowded families, to try to go

         24  out into the private market and see if they can find

         25  larger units, because it would take a long period
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          2  before we would have the availability of those sized

          3  units.

          4                 We did not get a very high response

          5  rate to that opportunity for a variety of reasons I

          6  am sure, but part of what we have to recognize is

          7  that the City's housing stock doesn't constitute

          8  very many units that are large enough to accommodate

          9  some of the larger families.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Right. I guess

         11  the point I am making is these are families where

         12  you have had people that have been on the waiting

         13  list who have asked, you know, where they have

         14  applied for additional housing and now if you are

         15  bringing in even working class families, how ever

         16  you want to define it, but at a higher level of

         17  income, who gets priorities there? Do they still

         18  stay in the list? Are they still available to get

         19  new units? And smaller units, not that the family

         20  unit wants to stay intact, because in many cases

         21  they don't want to have different family members

         22  together. In fact, in many cases you have a real

         23  conflict between them, and they would all be happier

         24  if they were in different smaller units, which would

         25  be more appropriate.
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          2                 But now that you are bringing in, you

          3  seem to be rescrambling the waiting list or

          4  whatever, that is why I am wondering where these

          5  people are in the priorities because they have been

          6  waiting for awhile.

          7                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: And unfortunately

          8  when you take a look at our waiting list in general,

          9  there are a lot of families that have been waiting

         10  for an extended period. But what I have just

         11  described is that we have already taken a look at

         12  trying to change the priority that is being given to

         13  the families that are very overcrowded, that is

         14  currently in what I described earlier as the tenant

         15  assignment and selection plan.

         16                 So, we are looking at that, and we

         17  have made a concerted effort to change the priority

         18  so that we can try to facilitate that. But it is not

         19  going to be something that will happen over night.

         20  Simply because the system does not have that many

         21  additional units.

         22                 Now, I over-simplified earlier when I

         23  talked about the working family preference being two

         24  vacancies and one from the waiting list and one

         25  working family, it is actually a system of three.
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          2  But it becomes more complicated and I try not to

          3  complicate things.

          4                 We have a transfer in there as well.

          5  The net is that we have two vacant units, but there

          6  are three units that are involved, because we have a

          7  transfer of priority that occurs, we have a vacancy

          8  that occurs, or two vacancies that occur, and so you

          9  actually have three shifts that occur, one of them

         10  being a transfer, so that we are trying to in the

         11  mix ensure that people in the category taking a

         12  transfer are not left out of the mix as well.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay. And then

         14  I know, I am sure this has been gone over before,

         15  but I just want to express the problems that I had

         16  with the way hearings were conducted, as far as for

         17  the quality housing and work responsibility act.

         18                 We had to do a lot of outreach

         19  downtown to a lot of units where we had a lot of

         20  terrified units. They were under the impression, and

         21  they would still be under the impression, that

         22  essentially NYCHA was going to be privatized and

         23  they would be out in the street. And a lot of that

         24  was because there was not proper outreach done, and

         25  the outreach that was done was done through the
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          2  existing councils as opposed to actually electing

          3  new representatives that could actually talk for the

          4  different NYCHA developments, and the fact that we

          5  had literally hundreds of people who were turned

          6  away from the original hearing on this because they

          7  couldn't get in, and when they did get in there was

          8  a problem with translation. They couldn't get

          9  Spanish translations and they really couldn't get

         10  Asian and Chinese translation. So, I would hope that

         11  in the future (a), the representatives speaking on

         12  behalf of the different NYCHA developments will

         13  actually be people who were elected for that reason,

         14  as the quality housing work responsibility act

         15  requires, as opposed to getting representatives from

         16  an existing structure, for those representatives

         17  were not elected for that reason. And nor do they

         18  really speak out on that reason because I spoke to a

         19  number of them.

         20                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Let me first say

         21  that there is a true misconception about whether we

         22  just slipped somebody in. We complied fully with the

         23  federal regulations --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: And we agree to

         25  disagree on that?
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          2                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ:-- The federal

          3  regulations stated -- well, yes, but if you read the

          4  federal regulation it clearly stated that if you had

          5  a citywide representative body already in place,

          6  that body shall become the resident advisory board,

          7  and that in addition to that body you had to have

          8  representation from the Section 8 program.

          9                 So, we believe that we did follow.

         10  But I will be the first to tell you that long before

         11  the residents begin complaining about whether this

         12  was true representation, we had already undertaken

         13  internal discussions about concerns that were raised

         14  about whether or not we had an appropriate level of

         15  representation. And so when our residents expressed

         16  concern, it wasn't my system. I didn't elect the

         17  people, and they have a whole process. This was a

         18  democratic process. The elected people who were

         19  sitting at that board were elected by people in

         20  their development and by their peers.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: That is a yes

         22  and a no. Certainly some of them hadn't had meetings

         23  for two years. So these are hardly people who are

         24  really very represented.

         25                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Let me tell you, I
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          2  believe that absolutely --

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: The bottom

          4  line, though, was they did not outreach to anyone

          5  and we --

          6                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, they may not

          7  have, but that is not something -- I am not supposed

          8  to take them in hand and go out and say now did you

          9  talk to this person, did you do this, did you do

         10  that.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: No, you took it

         12  on yourselves to decide that this Board that had

         13  been elected some time ago was going to be the board

         14  that was going to comply with this, and I think you

         15  had   a responsibility to see if they were going to

         16  do something.

         17                 I mean, my office, and I know Council

         18  Member Lopez' office and these other Council

         19  members, like Council Member Reed's office in the

         20  northern part of Manhattan, we were the ones who had

         21  to go out, we were the ones who printed up flyers

         22  and did information and held forums and talked to

         23  people when there was a near panic in many of our

         24  housing projects because they didn't know what was

         25  going on, and that is your responsibility, because
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          2  it is not our responsibility to get that information

          3  out there.

          4                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Let me say that we

          5  did not sit by idly. We did have articles in our

          6  journal, we did send notices out.

          7                 Now, I can tell you that I have

          8  listened to people tell me that they did not get any

          9  notices --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Not from my

         11  district.

         12                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Now, let me

         13  finish, please. I tried to listen to what you had to

         14  say.

         15                 When we send out notices, I ask our

         16  staff to go out and put them underneath the door of

         17  every development that we have. I want every

         18  apartment to have a notice. And there were multiple

         19  notices that were sent out. If I am told that the

         20  notices had been out, I have no way of independently

         21  verifying until I go to a meeting and a resident

         22  stands up and says, well, you know, I didn't know

         23  anything about this. And I can take corrective

         24  action at that point, but prior to that when I am

         25  told by my staff that we had notices that were
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          2  delivered that were put up in the bulletin boards,

          3  that were put under every single door, I have to

          4  assume it has been done.

          5                 If it hasn't, if somebody is throwing

          6  them away, and I can find out who may or may not be

          7  doing that, I can take corrective action.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Well, I would

          9  suggest you find out that at least under the initial

         10  public hearing who told you that our developments

         11  were notified, because they weren't. And it was only

         12  after we made a stink out of it and showed up with a

         13  lot of people and protested it that then people

         14  started getting notification. And then they got so

         15  much notification it was a little confusing.

         16                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Even after that

         17  occurred, when we set up the nine meetings around

         18  the City, I sent a personal letter to every single

         19  one of our residents, we had charts put together

         20  describing the plan that were hand-delivered to

         21  every development, and I went to these meetings,

         22  because I attended three of them myself, and in

         23  every instance I was told we didn't get any of this.

         24                 So, I don't know exactly what is

         25  going on. I can't believe that in every single
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          2  instance that our staff are failing to deliver

          3  things.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Now, I would

          5  tell you that after the original hearing, when we

          6  raised the stink about it, people did get

          7  notification. And a lot of them were aware of it, as

          8  I said, at that point it is almost getting

          9  confusing. The problem was the initial hearing was

         10  the hearing when there was supposed to be

         11  information taken in from the tenants, and that was

         12  the hearing that the tenants didn't know about and

         13  many of them, once we organized them to try and show

         14  up, couldn't even get inside the auditorium to

         15  speak. And that was also the hearing that there was

         16  a problem with translation. So there were a lot of

         17  people who never got to have any kind of input at

         18  all, even though that is exactly what they were

         19  supposed to have and that is what the hearing was

         20  supposed to be about.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

         22                 Mr. Chairman, the hearing was on

         23  September 29th, right?

         24                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: That's correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And what I read
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          2  in your report here is that in the month of August

          3  and September you sent out 180,000 issues of the

          4  journal; was that information in those August and

          5  September issues of the journal?

          6                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: What was in there

          7  was the notifications to our residents that we had

          8  copies of a plan available --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That was August

         10  and September?

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes. That there

         12  were copies available of the plan in specific

         13  locations, and we also announced in the journal when

         14  the public hearing was going to be held and where.

         15                 In addition to that there were other

         16  notices that were --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: 180,000 copies,

         18  that is your monthly journal?

         19                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Can we have

         21  copies of those journals?

         22                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I would be happy

         23  to give them to you, because these were sent to the

         24  doors of every resident.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That will put to
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          2  rest whether in fact they included that information.

          3                 As it relates to working tenant

          4  preference, could you clarify that for me?

          5                 Does that mean a high income,

          6  moderate income? What does that mean, working

          7  family?

          8                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: The working family

          9  preference merely means that we are looking at

         10  families that earn no more than 80 percent of the

         11  median income.

         12                 Currently most of the people who are

         13  coming off of our waiting list are earning about 30

         14  to 35 percent of the area median income, which in my

         15  testimony I indicated for a three-person household,

         16  it is about $14,000 a year.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thirty percent

         18  would mean what in terms of the number? Go from 30

         19  to 80, who can do the math?

         20                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Eighty percent,

         21  basically we are at about a $52,000 median income,

         22  so 80 percent would give somebody about a $41,000

         23  income, max.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And they have to

         25  sign up, apply and when their term comes up you will
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          2  call the list.

          3                 Now, according to Congressmember

          4  Velazquez, 84 percent of those on the list are poor

          5  people; now what does that mean, poor people? Less

          6  than the 30 percent of median?

          7                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, there are

          8  different categories of poor. In order to qualify,

          9  you have 50 percent of median income or less is

         10  considered to be low-income. Very low income is

         11  below 30 percent of median income. So there are just

         12  variations on the definition.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay. All right.

         14                 The median income, is it geographical

         15  or is it Citywide, or nationwide?

         16                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: The median income

         17  for New York City is based on what they call a

         18  metropolitan statistical area.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay. That

         20  includes --

         21                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: It encompasses the

         22  five boroughs of New York City.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Let me move now

         24  to under zero rent policy. That is a very intriguing

         25  concept. Do you intend to determine based on the
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          2  economic status of a person at a given time that

          3  they are entitled to zero rent? You make that

          4  determination?

          5                 .

          6                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And then, you

          8  say it is not a policy that is going to be in place

          9  forever.

         10                 Briefly could you describe to the

         11  Committee, do you have a social services department

         12  set up or a special agency to monitor and to nurture

         13  or to work with these families? How do you determine

         14  whether they are entitled to this or whether they

         15  are malingerers?

         16                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes, basically

         17  what we are looking at is the program that is

         18  designed to be a safety net. With the example I gave

         19  is that if somebody is in the current situation of

         20  having a benefit, their public assistance terminate

         21  after five years, because they are in what is called

         22  Temporary Assistance for Needy Families, TANF, if

         23  for no reason of their own their benefits end after

         24  five years and they do not have a job and they have

         25  no available source of income, we will verify that
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          2  they complied with all of the regulations under the

          3  program and that this is through no fault of their

          4  own, and what we would do is say that your rent

          5  would become zero, and that we then have a couple of

          6  components within the Authority.

          7                 One is the Department of Resident

          8  Employment Initiatives and Training, which will work

          9  with you. We also have social workers who can work

         10  with the family if they have other issues that need

         11  to be addressed and can make referrals to other

         12  agencies. But we will continue to work with them to

         13  help them establish themselves in the work place so

         14  that they can then --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And see how it

         16  plays itself out?

         17                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         19                 One final concern of mine is, when

         20  you give preference based on doubling up, when you

         21  give preference based on domestic violence, how do

         22  you determine what -- I mean, these are concepts

         23  that are susceptible to being exploited. I mean, how

         24  do you determine what is the real and what is

         25  self-imposed, self-inflicted?
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          2                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, to give an

          3  example, the doubling up, people have to be on our

          4  lease, we require that all of the residents in an

          5  apartment be listed on our lease, so that we know

          6  who in fact is there, so if you have a situation in

          7  which a family member, let's say a 19 or 20-year-old

          8  daughter has a child, that child is then added to

          9  the lease and subsequent additions to the family are

         10  added to the lease. If they are not on the lease,

         11  then they are an unauthorized occupant and they

         12  would not then be part of the discussion.

         13                 The same thing occurs when we talk

         14  about a victim of domestic violence. We have a

         15  process that they have to be able to certify. They

         16  have to show that they have an order of protection,

         17  that they are working with a specific social service

         18  agency.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Are you

         20  permitted to have unauthorized tenancies?

         21                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, legally, no.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay. So, in

         23  other words, if I have an unauthorized tenancy and I

         24  tell you about it, I am violation.

         25                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: That's correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          3                 Insofar as the decentralization of

          4  poverty, do you still have a number of developments

          5  that are viewed as middle income?

          6                 I can recall for a period of time the

          7  Pomenack and Ravenswood were certainly very

          8  desirable. I hope that still holds true, but that is

          9  two out of a lot of developments.

         10                 Do you have many developments still

         11  listed in that category as Pomenack and Ravenswood?

         12                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: No. What has

         13  happened over the last 25 years with the

         14  implementation of federal preferences, there has

         15  been a complete change in the economic mix in our

         16  housing units.

         17                 As I said, we went from a 65 percent

         18  working families down to 30 percent down to working

         19  families.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That included

         21  Pomenack and Ravenswood?

         22                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: It included

         23  everything that was in every single one of our

         24  developments. Because if you recall when I talked

         25  earlier about having been sued and having to now
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          2  deal with the subject tenant assignment plan, what

          3  happens is when a vacancy occurs, the next person on

          4  the list is popped up by the computer and that

          5  allocation is then determined on an objective basis,

          6  not on any kind of subjective basis.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, Council

          8  Member Reed wanted to be recognized again for the

          9  final question regarding this topic.

         10                 Stanley Michels before Council Member

         11  Reed.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Yes, as I

         13  understand it, and I did have an opportunity to

         14  testify before one of your hearings which I know

         15  what went on with every other hearing, but I thought

         16  that hearing we had in Riverbank was a good hearing,

         17  and that your representative at that hearing went

         18  around and he was subject to a lot of questioning

         19  and it was sort of like a Donohue-type of operation

         20  going around talking to people, and they gave me an

         21  opportunity to do the same thing with my statements.

         22                 And I understood from that time the

         23  issue, and I know you have gone over here a lot the

         24  ceiling as opposed to the flat rate, and I

         25  understand that you disagree and the agency
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          2  disagrees with the interpretation of HUD, and you

          3  intend to keep to the present system of the ceiling

          4  rents and that is your intention and I am hopeful

          5  you will fight that all the way if Washington tries

          6  to impose that on you. I hope they won't impose that

          7  flat rate on you.

          8                 Now, understanding that there isn't

          9  sufficient money in building new developments, and

         10  we are seeing what is happening in this City right

         11  now, the City has no new housing, we are not

         12  building any new housing either. Nor the state nor

         13  the feds, what they are doing is taking over

         14  presently existing buildings and rehabbing them,

         15  which is something I would like the Housing

         16  Authority in New York City, to have NYCHA to get

         17  into, so I think that is a very good idea. And I see

         18  your statement here with respect to, you mentioned

         19  something about mixed financing, the public/private.

         20  Of course, we are concerned that it ultimately goes

         21  private and that other people who are in there, of

         22  your tenants who are in there will be in jeopardy to

         23  some extent, we don't want that.

         24                 And, therefore, you said something

         25  that is not in your statement, something to the
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          2  effect that you try to put in there a right of first

          3  refusal. In other words, they would have to come to

          4  you first before they would privatize the building

          5  or you have the right to go there and do the

          6  purchase of that property; is that correct?

          7                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, I think to

          8  clarify what I believe you are talking about was a

          9  specific financing structure that exists under the

         10  federal tax code.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Right.

         12                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: As opposed to a

         13  situation where we may go out and be the developer

         14  ourselves and we may work with somebody to develop

         15  the housing.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That could be

         17  in the rehab as well as a new building?

         18                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: It could.

         19                 We are not talking about any of our

         20  developments being subject to the kind of system we

         21  are talking about. We will not at any point have any

         22  of our developments under someone else's control.

         23                 What I described to you was a vehicle

         24  that has been used by other housing authorities

         25  allowed under the tax code, and that is where you
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          2  have little or no money to rehab a development,

          3  there have been situations in the past where housing

          4  authorities --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: When you say

          6  you, you mean the Housing Authority?

          7                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: When the Housing

          8  Authority has no ability.

          9                 But we haven't reached the point that

         10  we are looking specifically at what I am going to

         11  describe, because this is something I know has been

         12  done in other cities.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And the only

         14  reason I am mentioning it is that you don't have

         15  money -- as I understand it you don't have money --

         16                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We don't have a

         17  sufficient amount of money to address the $7 billion

         18  unmet capital need that we have in the federal

         19  programs or the billions unmet in the State and City

         20  programs. But we are continuing to provide ongoing

         21  capital improvements to our developments and we do

         22  it in almost a triage sort of approach, because we

         23  have to assure the life safety issues are going to

         24  be addressed --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That I
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          2  understand, I am just talking about new

          3  developments.

          4                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: No. But we are not

          5  going to be in a situation where we have to go to a

          6  private landlord and say, before you do something we

          7  want the first right of refusal to buy, because we

          8  are not going to ever sell any of our developments

          9  to a landlord under --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What I am

         11  envisioning is the circumstance where you come

         12  across a piece of property which is located in an

         13  area where you think you can be able to take NYCHA

         14  tenants and put them in, so you go into this mixed

         15  financing, you have some money and the private

         16  developer, together you then develop that property,

         17  and rehab it or whatever it is.

         18                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Okay.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And then with

         20  the provision that you would put in NYCHA tenants in

         21  that building. And there comes a time where the

         22  private developer wants to take over that building

         23  or wants to sell it or wants to do whatever he would

         24  be entitled to under the contract you entered into.

         25  Because my understanding was you had put a provision
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          2  in such a contract when the time comes, which would

          3  say no, no, we want to have the right to first buy

          4  it.

          5                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes, that would be

          6  correct.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: That is what

          8  I meant. And then the only problem there that would

          9  come about is you don't have the money to do that.

         10                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We don't have

         11  federal dollars to do that.

         12                 What would happen if you wanted to

         13  buy that is that you would have to use existing

         14  financing vehicles using the capital markets with

         15  the issuance of bonds. That would be the only way

         16  that you could structure that kind of thing.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Do you have

         18  any ability to issue bonds?

         19                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes, we do.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: But there is

         21  a limitation on there, isn't there?

         22                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Depending on the

         23  type of bond that is issued, it is all within the

         24  context of what the federal laws are into the tax

         25  code.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And have you

          3  in recent years issued any bonds?

          4                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: The last bones

          5  that we issued were to finance developments that

          6  were Section 8 rehab about 20 years ago.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Right.  So

          8  that hasn't been done in a long time. Have you given

          9  some thought about doing that in the future, given

         10  the fact there is such difficulty in getting federal

         11  money and state money?

         12                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We are in fact

         13  looking at all of the financing tools that are

         14  available to public agencies as a way that we could

         15  finance any new housing development.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Have you

         17  checked to see whether there was a market for such

         18  bonds?

         19                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Anything that we

         20  would propose to do -- the market for the bonds is

         21  the easiest thing in the world. I know the market is

         22  there without question. I have had many years

         23  experience in that side of the business. The market

         24  is there.

         25                 There more critical issue is if we
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          2  were looking to do any development, we would have to

          3  do independent market surveys with respect to the

          4  type of housing and where the housing would be

          5  located before any decisions would be made.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And would it

          7  be triple tax lien exempt?

          8                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes. If we do it

          9  as tax exempt financing, they would be triple tax

         10  exempt. But in some instances it may make more sense

         11  not to do it with tax exempt financing but to do it

         12  taxably.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Why would

         14  that be?

         15                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, it depends

         16  on the type of development you want to do and what

         17  the current market environment is.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: You will have

         19  to pay higher interest, won't you?

         20                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, sometimes

         21  you will find that the interest rate environment is

         22  so constricted that the difference between a taxable

         23  and a tax exempt rate is relatively nominal in

         24  reality and it is easier to do things under the

         25  taxable than tax exempt, because tax exempt requires
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          2  you to comply with a series of federal regulatory

          3  requirements that sometimes make it more difficult

          4  to do the housing than is reasonable.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I think we

          6  ought to take advantage of the situation with your

          7  background and experience in this area. It has been

          8  20 years since we have explored this and since we

          9  are not getting funds from any other source. Are you

         10  seriously looking into doing this?

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I am directly

         12  involved in discussions with staff members around

         13  these very issues at this time.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Have you got

         15  some sort of a time situation as to when you are

         16  going to make the decision on this?

         17                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I would like to

         18  have decisions made within the next nine months.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And how large

         20  an offering are you considering?

         21                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, it would

         22  depend on what we ultimately decide. It would be

         23  foolish to try to do the maximum amount that we

         24  could do in any given year. We would have to look at

         25  a phasing and do it incrementally so that let's say
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          2  in one year you might do 300 units.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: What is the

          4  collateral for that?

          5                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: The collateral, it

          6  is treated a pure revenue bond, so that the

          7  collateral is the development itself, plus the

          8  revenue stream that it has generated from the rents.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: And the feds

         10  and the city you believe guarantee those models?

         11                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: No. This is not

         12  going to be a federal guarantee unless we seek FHA

         13  insurance, which you would normally do to look at

         14  either bond insurance or mortgage insurance and you

         15  build that into your cost of issuance.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Well, to be

         17  continued. I think that is a very good idea. I am

         18  very pleased that you are looking at something I

         19  hadn't known about.

         20                 Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Chairman

         22  Martinez, we are going to conclude your testimony

         23  with two brief questions from Council Member Reed

         24  and Council Member Freed.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Chair, once again.

          3                 And there are a lot of subjects that

          4  you could go over, and the issue of notification is

          5  very difficult and always frustrating.

          6                 From my side of it, I have often

          7  times had my own constituents tell me they didn't

          8  know about meetings I was having, so there is never

          9  a perfect model. I would strongly urge, though, that

         10  you keep elected officials aware of this and we can

         11  perhaps be supportive. If we know this far enough in

         12  advance we can also help you assist in getting that

         13  out so that we can say to our own constituents, we

         14  told you, too. I think that would be very useful to

         15  do.

         16                 I need just some clarification. You

         17  were talking about prioritizing people with domestic

         18  violence issues, I am truncating what you said; are

         19  those people who are in the development now?

         20                 In other words, you said you would

         21  raise somebody's transfer priority if there was

         22  domestic violence, is that if they are a tenant of

         23  NYCHA now, or supposedly if somebody is outside of

         24  NYCHA's development but needing housing for that

         25  situation?
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          2                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: The priorities

          3  that I am talking about applies to individuals who

          4  are currently residing and need to have a move

          5  because of domestic violence, as well as people who

          6  are applicants in the Section 8 program.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: But they have to

          8  be applicants in the Section 8 program?

          9                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Yes.

         10                 Now, understand, if somebody is not

         11  currently an applicant and they suddenly find

         12  themselves in a situation of domestic violence, they

         13  can submit an application today. And the only

         14  limitation will be how many people have a similar

         15  priority are in front of them.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: I understand. I

         17  understand.

         18                 You and I discussed this before and I

         19  think it is fascinating what you are trying to do

         20  potentially down at Baruch Houses. I am not going to

         21  make a commitment of how I feel about it, but the

         22  open space and developing more housing. But it

         23  raises this issue that, again, you and I have talked

         24  about in terms of you, in closing your developments

         25  so on one level you can do more security, but there
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          2  is a lot of urban design experts that will tell you

          3  that the more that we reinstitute the grids in the

          4  City, the more integration we have of communities.

          5  And you and I have had this conversation about a

          6  specific environment.

          7                 So, I am not sure what the concept,

          8  what the ideology you are coming at from, because on

          9  one level you were talking about having these new

         10  developments potentially with commercial strips, et

         11  cetera, et cetera, and inviting more people in. I

         12  happen to think in the limited study I did, although

         13  I do have a graduate degree in urban planning, that

         14  we are self segregating these communities and when

         15  we talk about trying to have an economic mix and a

         16  social mix, you almost negate that if you sort of

         17  make these developments islands unto themselves. So

         18  that is just sort of a statement and a question. I

         19  am not sure there was a conflict. I heard you say,

         20  one, we don't want to have people coming in, but on

         21  the other hand we are going to build something so

         22  people will have a reason to come through.

         23                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: The point I was

         24  making was we do want to reinstitute the grid sort

         25  of patterns. Currently people can access our
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          2  developments almost from any point, and the one we

          3  were talking about specifically was Baruch.

          4                 We believe it is incorporate a grid

          5  pattern. We want to create a road system that goes

          6  from one side to the other. We are going to have

          7  pedestrian access points where we can say you are

          8  welcome to come in, but we want you to respect the

          9  fact that we have landscaped areas and we don't want

         10  you just tromping through, destroying the lawn and

         11  doing other things. And in previous conversations I

         12  have indicated that we will begin looking at those

         13  things but it is important to us that we provide

         14  access in areas where it makes sense and that we not

         15  have to incur added costs to move compactors or

         16  trash areas or things like that. Or that when we do

         17  these kind of things that it is part of a broader

         18  plan and that we not do it on an ad hoc basis.

         19                 We agree with you that we need to

         20  incorporate a more active interaction, not trying to

         21  close people out, but we want to also ask if we are

         22  going to do that, we want people to respect the fact

         23  that this is private housing, these are the homes of

         24  people who live there and our experience has been

         25  that often that respect is not there, and that our
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          2  residents are then having to live with the fact that

          3  their developments are dirtier, less well maintained

          4  because the people who are visitors don't respect

          5  the fact that landscaped areas and other amenities

          6  that are there are not just generally a playground,

          7  that it is an actual environment in which people

          8  would like to have the ability to say it is their

          9  home.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         11  Freed.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Very quickly,

         13  one of the things I wanted to ask about was the

         14  whole idea of the self-sufficiency program and the

         15  question of at least eight hours work every month,

         16  and I know we went through the question with some of

         17  the WEP workers about what happens to the schooling.

         18  If someone is enrolled in a school where they are

         19  obviously trying to better themselves, will you give

         20  them in effect a pass on the eight hours of work?

         21                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Well, understand,

         22  I am not creating the requirement for eight hours.

         23  This is the federal requirement and they have not

         24  issued the final rule, so I don't know what latitude

         25  we have to deal with some of these issues.
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          2                 Once we know what the final rule

          3  looks like, we can raise questions about how we

          4  address a circumstance like you just described.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Well, because I

          6  would think that if you are talking about making

          7  units more self-sufficient and allowing them to

          8  better themselves economically that you would do, I

          9  mean in this case certainly what is logical, namely

         10  that if someone is enrolled in school or in a

         11  training program so that they can better themselves,

         12  get a better job, one would think that you would --

         13                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Again, if it were

         14  entirely within our control  we would have a

         15  different environment. We do not have those things

         16  entirely in our control. We are waiting to see what

         17  the regulation will be from HUD.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay. Have you

         19  at least had input to that extent? Or would you

         20  agree to put input into that so that people who are

         21  involved in vocational training are in school or an

         22  undergraduate, whatever, that they wouldn't have to

         23  do the eight hours?

         24                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We do actively

         25  participate in every rule-making HUD has because it
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          2  is not often that we necessarily agree with what HUD

          3  wants to do.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay. So, that

          5  is one of the things you have agreed to do or you

          6  have already done.

          7                 And then there are some other

          8  questions, such as other ways to make it easier,

          9  which is maybe taking the cap off of day care or

         10  things like that. Would you be willing to do that as

         11  well, so that there is an initiative out there, if

         12  people are beginning to earn, you know, are

         13  beginning to have a decent income, so there is not a

         14  disincentive so that they can have the kind of

         15  necessary support services. Because, again, like so

         16  many other things right now in the City, what we

         17  really have to look at is giving real support to

         18  people who are trying to better themselves and their

         19  families and make their lives better because

         20  ultimately that works to everybody's benefit in the

         21  City and it certainly would work for the benefit of

         22  the NYCHA developments.

         23                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Oh, without

         24  question we would always be willing to look at those

         25  kind of things and we would hope that as the system
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          2  continues to evolve, that the dollars that are

          3  currently available from the state level for the

          4  creation of new day care facilities will be utilized

          5  and not lost. There are dollars available, we don't

          6  have facilities, and we need support in trying to

          7  develop the facilities so that we can have

          8  additional day care slots available.

          9                 You look puzzled, and it is true.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Well, I think

         11  just to go on with what Council Member Reed said

         12  before, some of these things it would be very

         13  helpful if you did outreach to the Council members,

         14  you know, to our offices, because I guarantee you,

         15  we are more than willing to work and maybe we can

         16  make some suggestions and even come in with some

         17  dollars and will promote some of these things.

         18                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Currently, in

         19  terms of the child care, we do provide a deduction

         20  of $50 a week for one child, $80 a week for two

         21  children.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: And if it is

         23  necessary could you raise that?

         24                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: We can certainly

         25  adjust that if need be, but that is reasonable,
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          2  given what we see in the current market.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER REED: My skepticism --

          5  I beg your pardon, Councilwoman -- but I am thinking

          6  of one huge development, Wagner Houses, I know that

          7  across the street I have a day care center that has

          8  had a huge number of slots that they are not filling

          9  and the problem is the vouchers. So, again, if it is

         10  an issue of making these matches and these fits,

         11  then that is exactly I think what my colleague said

         12  in terms of how that was the skepticism. If you tell

         13  me that, I will do it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: This is not on

         15  your time, Council Member Reed.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: But I have had

         17  similar problems with that which is why it would be

         18  really nice if we did some outreach.

         19                 And then just to finish my question,

         20  another problem that I see coming up is the

         21  program-based Section 8s that are out there, and we

         22  are looking at, at one point I had the number of

         23  units down, but where they are about to phase out of

         24  that program and we are not quite sure what the

         25  federal government is doing, but there is a
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          2  possibility that the City of New York is going to

          3  have to deal with some, like 90,000 units going off

          4  line and these are very poor persons.

          5                 Is there a contingency plan? What

          6  happens if a number of these go off line, and what

          7  are we going to do with these people?

          8                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I understand. The

          9  program based, the project-based Section 8 is not

         10  something under our purview.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: I understand

         12  that.

         13                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: But there is a

         14  federal program. In fact, HUD has set up an office

         15  that has the responsibility to work with the state

         16  to identify ways that they can potentially

         17  restructure the developments that are looking at

         18  stepping out of the program. And the New York State

         19  Housing Finance Agency here in New York, as well as

         20  other states, Housing Finance Agencies around the

         21  country have been designated as the lead entities to

         22  work with this office in Washington, D.C. to create

         23  financing options for those privateowners of these

         24  buildings.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: But I am not
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          2  sure as financing options. I mean, maybe you can

          3  give them some kind of structure, but looking at the

          4  Housing Market that you have got now certainly in

          5  Manhattan where some of these are located, they can,

          6  you know, they can make 1,200, 1,500, 2,000 dollars

          7  a month rent on some of these units, and I think

          8  there may be a really critical time period out there

          9  --

         10                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I would be happy

         11  to put you in touch with the people in Washington

         12  who are responsible for the program, I can't speak

         13  for them.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Okay.

         15                 And then, lastly, hopefully you and

         16  we all will be working to try and get additional

         17  federal, state and additional monies to create new

         18  housing, because the bottom line is that is what we

         19  need.

         20                 Okay, thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Council Member

         22  Michels for a quick question.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Just a

         24  follow-up question. It is a question I did not ask

         25  with respect to those bonds we are talking about.
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          2                 How do you envision we will be paying

          3  the bonds off? From what source?

          4                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I indicated they

          5  are revenue bonds, which means such a primary source

          6  of payment is the rent that is collected on the

          7  apartments that are constructed with the money?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: So those

          9  rents would be a little higher, I guess, in order to

         10  pay those bonds off over and above the expenses of

         11  the building.

         12                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Absolutely.  What

         13  you are talking about, even if you use tax exempt

         14  financing and you have some minimum number have to

         15  be set aside for people at a lower income, you

         16  essentially create internal subsidies. You know,

         17  higher rents help to support those who are paying a

         18  lower rent.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you, Mr.

         21  Chairman.

         22                 In your opening testimony you said

         23  that you had submitted the plan, and I assume this

         24  is the plan that we received yesterday?

         25                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: That's correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Has been

          3  submitted to HUD, right?

          4                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: On December 1st.

          6                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Right.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Now, they can

          8  accept, reject or modify, right?

          9                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: They cannot modify

         10  it. They can accept it or they can come back and ask

         11  for clarification, but HUD doesn't have the ability

         12  to tell us that we have to modify the plan, they can

         13  raise questions about it. But the plan is a local

         14  plan.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Are you

         16  satisfied that this is the plan as now submitted

         17  that will be in operation?

         18                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I believe that it

         19  will be, yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Then I want to

         21  thank you very much for your time and testimony.

         22                 10705 Watson Place, I am still

         23  waiting for a call. I get accused of being parochial

         24  at these meetings, but sometimes it is the only

         25  personally --
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          2                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: I will personally

          3  call you. I will give you an answer. I can't

          4  guarantee you will like the answer.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, that's

          6  okay, that's life. That's life in New York, right?

          7                 CHAIRMAN MARTINEZ: Okay. Thank you

          8  very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I have grown

         10  accustomed to rejection. Thank you. I will be

         11  looking to hearing from you.

         12                 All right, we will continue with

         13  hearing the testimony of the public. We will begin

         14  with Beatric Byrd, who is with the Red Hook West

         15  Tenant Association.

         16                 Ms. Byrd, are you in the house?

         17                 MS. BYRD: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, have a

         19  seat.

         20                 Ms. Byrd, if you will identify

         21  yourself you can begin. My name is Beatrice Byrd and

         22  I am president of the Red Hook West Tenant

         23  Association, and also Council of Presidents Chair

         24  for Brooklyn South and a member of the Resident

         25  Advisory Board that has been alluded to in front of
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          2  me.

          3                 To the members of the Committee on

          4  Housing and Buildings, thank you for the invitation

          5  to appear before you and to give my views on the

          6  topic of oversight, the one-year plan and the

          7  five-year plan of the New York City Housing

          8  Authority.

          9                 I was one of the members of the

         10  Resident Advisory Board that gave input on behalf of

         11  the residents of NYCHA. The Resident Advisory Board

         12  consisted of 12 members. The designation was made by

         13  HUD we were told. There were three residents from

         14  Section 8 housing and nine of us that are chairs of

         15  the Council of Presidents from the five boroughs. I

         16  have been president of the Red Hook West Tenant

         17  Association for six years and hopefully will be

         18  re-elected to another three-year term of office so

         19  that I can continue to render service to my

         20  neighbors.

         21                 I was elected Chair of the Council of

         22  Presidents from Brooklyn South to a second

         23  three-year term of office this year. I have 19

         24  developments in my district.

         25                 I became a member of the Resident
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          2  Advisory Board and attended numerous meetings at 250

          3  Broadway where the plan was being put together.

          4                 We met with NYCHA's chairman John

          5  Martinez, Board Members, Carl Andrews and Carmen

          6  Finkel. We also met with Paul Grassiano, the General

          7  Manager of NYCHA and staff members who represented

          8  different departments.

          9                 We worked long hours over many days

         10  of meetings. We had to read volumes of materials and

         11  manuals in order to be able to intelligently

         12  participate in the discussions. Yet, we were

         13  castigated because we could not possibly represent

         14  6,000 residents --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Six-hundred

         16  thousand.

         17                 MS. BYRD: Six-hundred thousand, thank

         18  you.

         19                 We were at the table fighting for our

         20  residents and those outside were throwing rocks at

         21  us as though we were the problem not trying to be

         22  the solution.

         23                 I attended several meetings in

         24  different locations so that I could hear the

         25  residents' concerns directly. Those were local
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          2  meetings and one of them was in a church and one of

          3  them was in a high school. Those concerns were

          4  incorporated into our discussions by myself and

          5  other resident advisory board members.

          6                 Each time we met we would discuss

          7  different parts of the plan and supporting documents

          8  would be distributed to all of us. We did go over

          9  all of those things that you had been discussing

         10  previously. It was deja vu, I was going through it

         11  again.

         12                 Staff members from the various

         13  departments would be on-hand to give us the benefit

         14  of their expertise. We were given time to take the

         15  documents home and come back to the next meeting

         16  with any questions that we may have had.

         17                 The process was grueling, since so

         18  much information was given to us to digest to

         19  understand, and then to try to convey the

         20  information to the residents.

         21                 At one point residents could call in

         22  to request any of the parts of the plan that they

         23  would like to have sent to them.

         24                 There were 17 different topics that

         25  we discussed. We talked about rents, police,
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          2  admissions policies, and so much more. Efforts were

          3  made to get information out to the residents, but

          4  obviously, it wasn't enough.

          5                 Part of the problem was that under

          6  the previous Chairman, none of these kinds of

          7  marathon meetings took place. I am sure that the

          8  quality Housing Work Responsibility Act required the

          9  changes and input from the residents.

         10                 There will be more improvements as

         11  the process continues. Some of the changes will

         12  include getting information out to the residents

         13  better, and to have meetings earlier in the process

         14  whereby residents can ask questions about the plan

         15  and get answers.

         16                 These meetings will be held locally

         17  in the various districts.

         18                 Next time around should be better

         19  because some of the process will be familiar to the

         20  participants. I am told that the resident advisory

         21  board will be expanded and more inclusive the next

         22  time around.

         23                 The last meeting that I attended was

         24  held on November 29th, there were members of the

         25  resident alliance and Victor Bock from the Community
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          2  Service Society in attendance. Together we discussed

          3  the final draft of the one-year, five-year plan. So,

          4  some changes are already taking effect. The plan has

          5  to be discussed each year of the five-year plan.

          6                 I believe that I learned a lot about

          7  the workings of NYCHA. Through participation in the

          8  process, I truly tried to be responsive to the needs

          9  of those residents of the New York City Housing

         10  Authority that I am elected to represent.

         11                 I am satisfied with the plan as

         12  presented. I would be happy to answer any questions,

         13  if there are any.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you, Ms.

         16  Byrd.

         17                 I just want to ask you one question.

         18  There has been some discussion as to adequate

         19  notification. When were all of these meetings taking

         20  place? Were they before the December 29th meeting?

         21  And in terms of the monthly journals that are sent

         22  out, did they include information as to the project

         23  under discussion, and the meetings coming up.

         24                 MS. BYRD: I can't recall about the

         25  journal. But I can tell you that they have large
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          2  posters that were placed into the buildings by the

          3  caretakers.

          4                 One of the problems that we have with

          5  our residents is that they have become immune to

          6  these notices because they see so many of them in

          7  the hallway, and some of the notices that the

          8  Housing Authority sends look very official to them

          9  so they don't respond. And many of the residents are

         10  not generally aware of what happens at the hearing

         11  such as the one that we had at Pace. When I give

         12  notices to the residents of the tenants association,

         13  I generally try to make them look attractive, I try

         14  to make them look interesting and eye-catching so

         15  that the residents will want to come out to the

         16  meetings.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, did we

         18  hear figures of 600,000 residents, and then

         19  according to Mr. Martinez' testimony over the period

         20  of hearings of approximately 5,000 showed up, so I

         21  don't know what percentage of participation that is

         22  really low, but it is in keeping with what we have

         23  in a lot of instances where we try to encourage

         24  participation.

         25                 Thank you, Ms. Byrd.
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          2                 MS. BYRD: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, next we

          4  have a panel consisting of Victor Bach, Dushaw

          5  Hockett, Amy Mayer and Adriane Holder.

          6                 Ladies, gentlemen, take a seat and

          7  you can begin your testimony.

          8                 In any order that you choose,

          9  identify yourself, please.

         10                 MR. HOCKETT: Sure. First let me say

         11  greetings and good afternoon to the Council. My name

         12  is Dushaw Hockett and I am the Chairperson of a

         13  Citywide organization of residents, called the New

         14  York City Public Housing Resident Alliance.

         15                 I am also a staff person for a

         16  national public housing resident organizing

         17  initiative.

         18                 On behalf of the Alliance, I want to

         19  thank the Housing and Buildings Committee for

         20  holding this very important hearing at this very

         21  important time.

         22                 For the purpose of providing the

         23  Committee with some contextual background, I want to

         24  briefly just describe for you the changing landscape

         25  in federal housing policy that has brought us to the
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          2  point that we are now.

          3                 As you may know, this is a critical

          4  time in the life of the public housing program in

          5  the lives of public housing residents in this City,

          6  and in this country.

          7                 The Quality Housing and Work

          8  Responsibility Act of 1998 essentially deregulates

          9  the 3,400 Housing Authorities in this country,

         10  making them more powerful than they have ever been

         11  before in terms of their decision-making powers.

         12                 The federal government now provides

         13  less prescription in the policies that create

         14  Housing Authorities now have more discretion in the

         15  policy decisions that they make.

         16                 For instance, Housing Authorities now

         17  have the discretion to admit into public housing

         18  high-income applicants in ways that they never could

         19  before.

         20                 The Quality Housing and Work

         21  Responsibility Act of 1998 requires Housing

         22  Authorities to admit at least four or 40 percent out

         23  of every ten -- well, the Quality Housing and Work

         24  Responsibility Act of 1998 requires Housing

         25  Authorities to give at least four or 40 percent out

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            118

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  of every ten units that become available each year

          3  to applicants that the federal government considers

          4  to be very poor. In New York City that works out to

          5  approximately $15,000 annually in income each year.

          6                 The new law says Housing Authorities

          7  must give at least four out of every ten units that

          8  become available each year to applicants that fall

          9  in that income tier.

         10                 The Housing Authority in its one-year

         11  plan has chosen to give no more than four out of

         12  every ten units to those applicants that fall in

         13  that income tier of $15,000 a year or less.

         14                 New York City Housing Authority

         15  currently has 109,000 applicants on its waiting list

         16  for public housing. Of those 109,000 applicants on a

         17  waiting list, 84 percent of those 109,000 applicants

         18  are what the federal government considers to be very

         19  poor. Those 84 percent of the 109,000 applicants

         20  have incomes ranging from 15,000 a year or less in

         21  annual income.

         22                 A report recently released by an

         23  organization called the National Low-Income Housing

         24  Coalition looked at the comparisons between housing

         25  costs in wage earnings for low-income people. And
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          2  what the report found was in boroughs like Brooklyn,

          3  in Boroughs like Manhattan, average rent for a

          4  two-bedroom apartment is approximately $891,000 a

          5  month. The report went further in looking at what

          6  income would a household need to be able to pay that

          7  $891 a month for a two-bedroom apartment and also be

          8  able to provide for other necessities.

          9                 The report found that a household

         10  would need to have an annual income of approximately

         11  $36,000 a year to be able to pay that $891 a month

         12  in rent for a two-bedroom apartment.

         13                 The report went further, looked at

         14  what that $36,000 a year translates to in terms of

         15  hourly wage. The report found that an individual

         16  would need to have an hourly wage of at least $17.13

         17  an hour to be able to afford that two-bedroom

         18  apartment at $891 a month in rent.

         19                 A lot of folks are talking about,

         20  well, let's raise the minimum wage, now at $5.15 an

         21  hour. What this report found was if a person was

         22  working at minimum wage at $5.15 an hour, in order

         23  for that individual to afford that two-bedroom

         24  apartment at $891 a month in rent, they would have

         25  to work at minimum wage 133 hours a week at a
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          2  minimum a week, at a minimum wage of $5.15 an hour

          3  to afford that two-bedroom apartment at $891 a month

          4  in rent.

          5                 So, the question that we have posed

          6  to the Housing Authority over the past few months is

          7  do we have an affordable housing crisis in this

          8  City, does your waiting list reflect the fact that

          9  there is a great need for affordable housing, which

         10  it does, and if so, why limit the number of units

         11  that you are going to provide each year to families

         12  who are considered very low income when your waiting

         13  list has 84 percent of 109,000 applicants falling

         14  into that tier. So, we are concerned about the broad

         15  discretion that Housing Authorities have and also

         16  about policy decisions that they are making under

         17  this broad discretion.

         18                 So, the point is, Housing Authority

         19  is now deregulated under QHWRA, in exchange for

         20  deregulation, QHWARA also demanded accountability

         21  from Housing Authorities. That accountability is in

         22  the form of this one-year and five-year plan that we

         23  have been discussing that Council Members have

         24  before them.

         25                 More importantly, Congress also said
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          2  residents of public housing must have a role, in

          3  developing these one year and five-year plans it

          4  must have a role in shaping all of the policies that

          5  are to be a part of these one-year and five-year

          6  plans.

          7                 Now, what I want to do briefly is,

          8  just to make two comments or observations about the

          9  QHWRA statute and also two brief comments and

         10  observations concerning the planning process. The

         11  first comment is, it is important for the public and

         12  for the Committee to look at this planning process

         13  as a planning process and not simply a reporting

         14  process.

         15                 The thinking of Congress in enacting

         16  QHWRA and also of HUD in promulgating these

         17  regulations, is that this would be a planning

         18  process. It is to be a process where housing

         19  agencies do not just simply check off a box on this

         20  plan template without careful analysis in

         21  consultation with residents. It is to be a process

         22  where Housing Authorities take a well-focused and

         23  strategic look at its current resources, take a

         24  well-focused and strategic look at current needs,

         25  i.e., needs for more affordable housing and also
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          2  devise a plan --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You are going to

          4  take up all of your colleagues' time.

          5                 MR. HOCKETT: Okay.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You certainly

          7  have to focus and come to the point because you have

          8  three other people who have to testify.

          9                 MR. HOCKETT: Okay.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And we have a

         11  limited time.

         12                 MR. HOCKETT: I will be short. I will

         13  be short.

         14                 The plan is, this is a planning

         15  process, not a reporting process. Across the country

         16  what we are finding are preliminary assessments of

         17  the agency planning processes is that Housing

         18  Authorities are not engaging in a level of analysis

         19  of current programs and current policies in order to

         20  make appropriate decisions concerning policy. And as

         21  we march forward into the 2001 planning process, we

         22  are urging the Housing Authority and we would hope

         23  that the Council would urge the Housing Authority to

         24  look at this as a planning process and not simply a

         25  reporting process where you check off boxes without
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          2  consulting residents in the appropriate manner and

          3  without doing the proper analysis of data that needs

          4  to be done.

          5                 The second point, concerning resident

          6  participation. Residents of public housing have long

          7  held that a well-run public housing authority is

          8  about more than just brick and mortar. A well-run

          9  Housing Authority is about how involved residents

         10  are in policy setting and mission setting, how well

         11  residents are treated when they walk into a local

         12  management office.  QHWRA in HUD's regulations could

         13  value on resident participation in various ways. I

         14  will mention a few of them and I will be brief.

         15                 One is that not only does the statute

         16  require that residents shape policies in these

         17  one-year plans through a Resident Advisory Board

         18  structure, but of all the regulations that QHWRA

         19  repealled, HUD'S regulations on tenant participation

         20  were one of a handful of regulations that QHWRA kept

         21  intact for the most part that was due to aggressive

         22  lobbying by residents here in New York City.

         23                 Number two, under QHWRA, all Housing

         24  Authorities, with a few exceptions, are required to

         25  have at least one public housing residence or
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          2  Section 8 tenants on their governing boards.

          3                 New York City Housing Authority is an

          4  exception to that provision because Housing

          5  Authority Board members in New York City are

          6  salaried and full time.

          7                 If we were able to make modifications

          8  to state law that would allow a resident to serve on

          9  the Housing Authority's governing board, QHWRA would

         10  enable that to happen, and that is something that

         11  residents in New York City are working on and we had

         12  hoped the Council would support us in our efforts

         13  around that.

         14                 Number three, one of the things that

         15  HUD is working on as we speak is a new assessment

         16  system for Public Housing Authorities that would

         17  allow residents for the first time ever to have a

         18  voice in evaluating the performance of Public

         19  Housing Authorities.

         20                 For years New York City Housing

         21  Authority has been ranked amongst the best in terms

         22  of its performance. This new system, again for the

         23  first time ever, gives residents a voice in

         24  evaluating how public housing is managed and

         25  maintained in New York City through a resident
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          2  service and satisfaction survey.

          3                 In the one-year and five-year plan

          4  document that you have before you, the Housing

          5  Authority has identified as one of its strategic

          6  goals the goal to improve customer satisfaction. So,

          7  we would only hope that the Housing Authority does

          8  all that it can to make this new assessment system

          9  for Public Housing Authorities work the way that it

         10  should work.

         11                 And in closing, I just want to say

         12  that one of the things that have concerned us for

         13  years is meaningful resident participation and

         14  policy setting and mission setting, and as we again

         15  march forward into this planning process for 2001,

         16  we would only hope that the Housing Authority would

         17  do more to make that participation process

         18  meaningful and to make the principle and practice of

         19  resident participation real in New York City.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay. Thank you,

         22  Mr. Hockett.

         23                 We have visiting us today a group of

         24  students from PS 121, that is in the Bronx. Welcome

         25  to City Hall, welcome to a meeting of the City
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          2  Council's Housing and Buildings Committee where

          3  today we are discussing an issue that may be

          4  important to some of you, some of you may live in

          5  public housing. We are trying to resolve a very

          6  difficult challenge and that is how to maintain New

          7  York City's 181,000 apartments and to provide a

          8  quality lifestyle for the 600,000 residents in a

          9  manner that is appropriate and will be satisfying to

         10  not only those who live in those developments, but

         11  all of New York City as well.

         12                 So, stick around as long as you can,

         13  come again, and we are certainly happy that you are

         14  with us today at this time.

         15                 Okay, Mr. Hockett, you did hear the

         16  previous person who spoke, Ms. Byrd?

         17                 MR. HOCKETT: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

         19                 Who is next?

         20                 MR. BACH: I am Victor Bach, with the

         21  Community Service Society, and work closely with the

         22  New York City Public Housing Resident Alliance. I

         23  think the bottom line for all of us, for the City,

         24  for the City Council, for all of us here, is that

         25  public housing in New York City is its primary
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          2  low-income housing resource. And that is 182,000

          3  units, 346 developments, 600,000 residents, that is

          4  the size of Boston, that is the size of a City, and

          5  under the new law, as Dushaw indicated, the local

          6  authorities have increased powers to plan for the

          7  future of that stock, and I think the thousands of

          8  residents who showed up at the hearings made it

          9  clear that they wanted a voice in what happens to

         10  public housing here and that they hadn't had a voice

         11  before that.

         12                 I think the bottom line is important

         13  to realize, because under the plan NYCHA plans to

         14  comply with the minimum prescription set by the law

         15  in Washington, by giving 40 percent of vacant units

         16  to very low-income families.

         17                 There is a lot at stake there, and we

         18  need to look at it.

         19                 We estimate that under normal

         20  turnover, over the next ten years, there will be a

         21  net loss of 10,000 units available to very

         22  low-income families as they are increasingly

         23  replaced through turnover by higher-income working

         24  families. That means that we have a plan that

         25  effectively will remove 10,000 to 20,000 bedrooms in
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          2  a City where the Administration increasingly thinks

          3  every person should have a bedroom and is pulling

          4  them off the street on the assumption that they will

          5  find them.

          6                 So, we should not take lightly either

          7  the Council or the City as a whole that 10,000 to

          8  20,000 bedrooms will be lost over the next ten years

          9  to people who have urgent housing needs.

         10                 The waiting list has been talked

         11  about. Under the new law NYCHA can now skip over the

         12  new waiting list in order to find higher-income

         13  families and meet its new target, and in order to

         14  comply with the deconcentration objectives.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Bach, do you

         16  think there is any value to trying to maintain an

         17  economic and social mix? Do you place any value on

         18  that at all?

         19                 MR. BACH: I place a high value on it

         20  and I believe NYCHA has done a fairly successful

         21  job.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: How do you

         23  achieve it, sir?

         24                 MR. BACH: I think NYCHA, compared to

         25  other Housing Authorities in large cities across the
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          2  country has achieved it and has a record the City

          3  can be proud of.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Martinez

          5  said that they are now 38 percent working families,

          6  and that is they embarked in the last two, three

          7  years in recruiting working families. The number has

          8  been dramatically falling.

          9                 MR. BACH: Thirty-eight percent

         10  working families is a very fine record compared to

         11  any Housing Authority. If you are concerned about

         12  role models, there is no lack of those role models

         13  under 38 percent working family residency.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I am not

         15  concerned about role models, I am just concerned if

         16  you place some value, if you place a high value on

         17  social and economic diversity, I don't know how you

         18  achieve it. If I told you I had a solution for that

         19  abra cadabra, I would. I just don't know how you --

         20                 MR. BACH: NYCHA's history is a record

         21  of mixed income admissions, and as I say, for public

         22  housing across the country, it does not have the

         23  problems of Chicago or New York, it has a fairly

         24  good record as a high performer in getting a diverse

         25  income group in the public housing, we see no reason
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          2  why the question of how many poor people admitted

          3  will affect that record. In the past it has been

          4  admitted more than 40 percent, there is no reason

          5  not to continue that.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay.

          7                 MR. BACH: Okay, the other issue I

          8  wanted to focus on was deconcentration, because we

          9  have started to talk about diversity, and

         10  deconcentration is required by the federal law and

         11  we are concerned, we think generally that NYCHA has

         12  been very responsive to the concerns registered by

         13  residents at the hearings and the meetings, but not

         14  on deconcentration.

         15                 We still have in the plan one-way

         16  deconcentration, that is NYCHA is going to try to

         17  attract higher-income families into its lowest

         18  income developments. We have been urging, along with

         19  the residents in the Resident Alliance and others,

         20  we have been urging two-way deconcentrations; that

         21  is, open up NYCHA's highest income developments to

         22  low-income families who are either already in public

         23  housing, or among the 84 percent poor on the waiting

         24  list.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Do you have a
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          2  list of those with higher income? Because Mr.

          3  Martinez just a minute ago had said --

          4                 MR. BACH: I am sure Mr. Martinez can

          5  supply them the plan, the section in the plan on

          6  deconcentration to indicate that they do exist, and

          7  I don't have names to attach to them at the moment,

          8  but we can make certain you get them.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I only know two,

         10  which keeps coming to my mind --

         11                 MR. BACH: Pamanoch.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Yes, that is all

         13  I know.

         14                 MR. BACH: And by the way, those are

         15  some of the largest developments in the City. So,

         16  that some of the highest income developments are

         17  among the largest. That means the potential for

         18  deconcentration in the other direction is very good.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Send more people

         20  into Pamanoch?

         21                 MR. BACH: Well, yes, send people at

         22  the lower end of the range. NYCHA does a very good

         23  job of screening applicants and deciding who should

         24  -- I mean, I don't fault NYCHA on bureaucratic

         25  procedure, but in any case we think that has very
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          2  important fair housing implications. Along with the

          3  flat rent, ceiling rent issue. With flat rent you

          4  have rents being structured according to the market

          5  values in the community. Well, once you introduce

          6  market value as a way of deciding on public housing

          7  rent structures, you are immediately running the

          8  risk of re-enforcing existing patterns of economic

          9  and racial segregation.

         10                 The same thing in deconcentration.

         11  Once you allow your high-income developments to stay

         12  intact while you move higher income families into

         13  the lowest income developments, you are in some way

         14  creating an obstacle to fair housing objectives.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Next.

         17                 MS. MAYER: Hi. I am Amy Mayer, I am a

         18  staff attorney at MFY Legal Services, and MFY is

         19  Counsel to public housing residents in the lower

         20  east side, for the Multi-Development Coalition of

         21  Public Housing Residents that has been meeting

         22  around the NYCHA agency plan issue.

         23                 I want to thank you for giving us the

         24  opportunity to speak to you today.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: We thank you for
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          2  coming.

          3                 MS. MAYER: I intend to address

          4  procedural issues in implementing the planning

          5  requirements under QHWRA this year. I don't want to

          6  beat a dead horse, so I will try to skip over things

          7  that have been discussed before.

          8                 I just want to say, though, again,

          9  that as Mr. Hockett described, the Quality Housing

         10  Work Responsibility Act was intended to dramatically

         11  reduce federal regulation of local housing

         12  authorities and in place of that federal regulation

         13  QHWRA emphasizes, "appropriate accountability to

         14  public housing residents, localities, and the

         15  general public. So that is where we are interested

         16  in seeing fully implemented.

         17                 Again, I don't want to beat a dead

         18  horse about the notification issue, I am just going

         19  to say that I spent a good deal last summer meeting

         20  with public housing residents around the City,

         21  primarily on the lower east side, development by

         22  development, and almost none of them had heard of

         23  this process, either the RAB -- they didn't know

         24  what the RAB was, that is the Resident Advisory

         25  Board., they didn't know what ICOP was, and they had
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          2  never heard about QHWRA or the planning process

          3  right up until the public hearing unless we were

          4  there telling them about it.

          5                 I also want to emphasize something

          6  that Mr. Hockett mentioned about whether we think

          7  NYCHA has really taken seriously the mandate to plan

          8  and to really seriously do the analysis, data

          9  collection and analysis required for this kind of

         10  planning.

         11                 We have been repeatedly requesting

         12  NYCHA to provide us with documentation supporting

         13  documents to their plan that they are federally

         14  required to provide, and we still haven't seen them,

         15  and some of these documents are, for instance, they

         16  are required to document, that they fully considered

         17  the fair housing implications of all of their

         18  policies and the impediments to fair housing in the

         19  City, and that they address those impediments and we

         20  haven't seen that.

         21                 They are required to fully analyze

         22  the poverty concentration in their developments and

         23  in the census tracks that their developments sit in.

         24                 The chair asked a moment ago Mr. Bach

         25  if he had the list of higher income development
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          2  among NYCHA's developments, and if he does it is not

          3  because it was in the plan, because it wasn't

          4  provided in the plan, although we have repeatedly

          5  asked for it, and although it is required in the

          6  federal regulations to be provided.

          7                 And finally, there is no -- I have

          8  not been able to find adequate documentation that

          9  NYCHA considered and ensured that its plans are

         10  consistent with the comprehensive housing

         11  affordability strategy of the City of New York.

         12                 So, those are some other, in addition

         13  to the notification, some other procedural issues.

         14                 As you have heard, NYCHA did after

         15  the public, the initial public hearing, provide some

         16  additional process through some additional meeting

         17  and some increased access to the draft plan, but

         18  really these additional procedural measures,

         19  although an improvement were largely too late to

         20  make it possible for residents to have meaningful

         21  input into the plan this year, and although HUD

         22  allowed NYCHA admittedly at the last minute the

         23  option of extending the due date for its admission

         24  until January 31st, NYCHA declined to take that

         25  option and went ahead and submitted the plan.
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          2                 So, I have a couple of suggestions

          3  about ensuring a better annual planning process in

          4  the future.

          5                 Chairman Martinez has committed to

          6  funding an independent consultant to convene all of

          7  the local resident Council presidents and facilitate

          8  that body and choosing a more representative RAB for

          9  next year; however, the Chairman has been unwilling

         10  to commit ahead of time to resources that would be

         11  made available to that RAB.

         12                 The federal regulations require the

         13  Housing Authority "allocate reasonable resources to

         14  assure the effective functioning of the RAB, and the

         15  regulations go on to define those reasonable

         16  resources as providing "reasonable means for them to

         17  become informed on programs covered by the PHA plan

         18  to communicate in writing and by telephone with

         19  assisted families and hold meetings with those

         20  families, and to access information regarding

         21  covered programs on the Internet, taking into

         22  account the size and resources of the PHA.

         23                 Since NYCHA is the largest PHA in the

         24  country and is considered to be one of the best

         25  performing by HUD, there really is no excuse for not
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          2  providing the resources for NYCHA's Resident

          3  Advisory Board to become one of the best informed

          4  and most effective in the country also.

          5                 Finally, no matter how well informed

          6  and prepared the residents are on the Resident

          7  Advisory Board and beyond it, no matter how high

          8  quality the residents comments and suggestions, the

          9  planning process will still be a sham unless NYCHA

         10  seriously considers and responds to the resident's

         11  input.

         12                 This year NYCHA responded in a

         13  limited manner to some resident concerns, however,

         14  it ignored others.

         15                 In particular, residents wished NYCHA

         16  to address a number of substantive areas in its plan

         17  that NYCHA had not so far addressed, and I think Ms.

         18  Holder is going to talk a little bit about those

         19  areas.

         20                 On various occasions NYCHA has stated

         21  it wasn't going to address those things because it

         22  wasn't required by the federal regulations, but I

         23  think if you look closely at the regulations, they

         24  actually require NYCHA to address anything that the

         25  residents want them to address. It is a
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          2  comprehensive planning process.

          3                 Anyway, as representatives of the

          4  approximately 600,000 public housing residents in

          5  New York City and also the millions of other New

          6  Yorkers who are affected by the affordable housing

          7  crisis, the City Council has an important oversight

          8  goal regarding these issues.

          9                 The City Council can assist public

         10  housing residents to hold NYCHA accountable on the

         11  local level by monitoring in an ongoing fashion

         12  NYCHA's compliance with the planning requirements of

         13  the federal law, and by requiring NYCHA to justify

         14  its policies in relation to the affordable housing

         15  strategies, fair housing principles and other

         16  policies of this City as a whole.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, we intend

         19  to do that, and with the comments of people like

         20  yourselves, we will be in the position to hopefully

         21  ask the right questions.

         22                 Miss, you are next.

         23                 MS. HOLDER: Good afternoon. My name

         24  is Adriane Holder, I am a staff attorney with The

         25  Legal Aid Society, Civil Repeals and Law Reform
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          2  Unit. We are also counsel to the New York City

          3  Housing Authority Residents Alliance.

          4                 I just want to touch quickly on some

          5  of the remaining issues that the residents actually

          6  wanted to have more substantively addressed and were

          7  not addressed during this process because of the

          8  failure to the process.

          9                 Chair Martinez touched upon issues

         10  about economic self-sufficiency and employment

         11  programs, but interestingly enough, those programs

         12  also claimed to have been implemented. There have

         13  been no notices out as to how, for instance, the

         14  initiative that they are pursuing the 24-month

         15  phase-in of rent increases for people who are making

         16  a transition from welfare to work, the notices that

         17  would explain who actually qualifies for this

         18  initiative, as well as how to actually calculate the

         19  income for this initiative have yet to be issued,

         20  and it is only mentioned as something that is going

         21  to be happening as a part of an attachment to the

         22  plan in response to comments, again, that the

         23  resident had made but were not adequately addressed

         24  during this process.

         25                 We were disappointed that more of the
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          2  self-sufficiency programs and initiatives weren't

          3  raised and utilized to be placed in this plan.

          4                 For instance, the elimination off the

          5  cap for child care reductions, as well as other

          6  issues that tenants would have like to have seen in

          7  terms of the reporting of income, and that would

          8  apply to all residents who were making the

          9  transition from welfare to work or low income to

         10  higher income salaries. Those issues were not

         11  anything that was debated and anything that they

         12  were able to have a full and fair hearing on their

         13  issues and concerns and not included in this plan,

         14  and we would encourage, as we move forward, that

         15  these types of programs be considered so that

         16  residents understand and that the Housing Authority

         17  is going to be committed to stabilizing homes and

         18  families, residents, in the communities that they

         19  live in and ensuring that there is affordable rent

         20  for all residents.

         21                 Another thing that Chairman Martinez

         22  brought up that appeared to be addressed but wasn't

         23  addressed in the plan was this issue of section

         24  three.

         25                 It is encouraging that New York City
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          2  Housing Authority in fact has 15 percent set-asides

          3  in their contract. This is not explained in the plan

          4  and if this is a policy that is to enable tenants to

          5  be recruited as well as employed and retained in

          6  employment, then this should be part of the

          7  commitment of the plan and part of this one and

          8  five-year process moving forward. It should have

          9  been in the plan.

         10                 Councilwoman Lopez has brought up

         11  very effectively in what the tenants would like to

         12  see is that there actually be an outreach beforehand

         13  that these contracts are actually signed within

         14  development those folks can identify, and resident

         15  leaders have said that they have themselves tried to

         16  identify individuals who would qualify as being

         17  experienced or ready to be trained to be prepared to

         18  meet the openings that these kind of contracts would

         19  provide for employment for these residents. Why

         20  there is not a connection and why that hasn't gone

         21  forward because of the willingness on residents to

         22  be a part of that kind of process is something that

         23  we are still concerned about and that we like to see

         24  happen as we move forward in the process. It is an

         25  issue of serious concern for all of the current
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          2  residents in public housing and has an effect on how

          3  it is then that the communities and the developments

          4  are going to be able to address economically. So, if

          5  it is of greater importance, we would hope that it

          6  would start to appear in the plan.

          7                 Another issue that the tenants don't

          8  feel that has been adequately addressed through the

          9  plan are there are ongoing issues of security. There

         10  are concerns that with the merger between the

         11  Housing Authority and the Police Department and the

         12  New York City Police Department, that there actually

         13  has been a decrease in services to the developments,

         14  and actually there has been less familiarity with

         15  the officers that work in the developments and that

         16  a lot of officers are transitioned in and out of the

         17  development so that there can be no familiarity with

         18  the tenants in the community in which they are

         19  serving.

         20                 Tenants have expressed the desire to

         21  be able to work more directly with the individual

         22  officers and their lieutenants who are in charge of

         23  those projects and we would hope that moving forward

         24  that these things would happen.

         25                 Housing Authority is saying they are
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          2  going to move in these directions to have these

          3  things happen and tenants are skeptical because they

          4  have been made these promises in the past and it

          5  doesn't seem as if they are moving forward, and

          6  hopefully these issues, too, will be addressed.

          7                 And lastly, because I know we are

          8  running out of time, there is great concern with the

          9  drug elimination programs, that the manner in which

         10  those grants are actually given to developments, the

         11  amount of those grants and the resources and the

         12  supportive services that are provided see to it the

         13  implementation of those programs actually are being

         14  met and given to young people and folks that are

         15  identified in the developments by residents as being

         16  folks that could benefit from these programs.

         17  Tenants would like to see that there is a real

         18  correlation in the connection with that and that

         19  their views be actually heard and that they be a

         20  part of the process in understanding this program

         21  and understanding the best and most effective way to

         22  use the money that had been set aside for that.

         23                 We would like to thank you, and I

         24  know that we are open to take any more questions. We

         25  really appreciate the opportunity.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I want to thank

          3  all of you for your thoughtful and obviously very

          4  sincere testimony. As the spokespeople for tenants,

          5  600,000 tenants, and there can be disagreement as to

          6  whether enough emphasis was put on one point or

          7  another or who is right and who is wrong, what is

          8  the best way to do it, but have you had any

          9  difficulty in communicating your views or gaining

         10  access to the leadership of the Housing Authority?

         11                 MR. BACH: My response would be not

         12  since 2,000 residents showed up at the September

         13  29th hearing. There has been a new openness at the

         14  Housing Authority hearing what we all have to say.

         15                 MR. HOCKETT: The other thing that I

         16  would add is, our thinking is that there should be

         17  some institutionalized structure for resident

         18  participation. Residents should not have to turn out

         19  in hundreds at public hearings every year to get the

         20  type of reaction from the Housing Authority that

         21  residents feel that they deserve.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, I think

         23  there is supposed to be the Presidents Council, or

         24  whatever that is, that the target of so much

         25  criticism, which Mr. Martinez said they are going to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            145

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  revise and review and try to get it right. You have

          3  600,000 tenants, I don't know if you are ever going

          4  to reach the point in the life of that large body

          5  when there is going to be one universe for the -- I

          6  get a primary every time I run, you know? And I have

          7  been running since 1974 and there is always going to

          8  be dissent, always going to be dissent. So, we will

          9  have to agree that we will have to keep working

         10  towards that goal. I don't know if we will ever

         11  achieve it, but we will have to keep working towards

         12  it.

         13                 MS. MAYER: I would like to add

         14  something.

         15                 First of all, on the point you were

         16  just discussing, that is why this is important that

         17  this is a two-part process, that there is the

         18  consultation with the Resident Advisory Board and

         19  there is also outreach to the residents in general.

         20  I also wanted to add something to what Mr. Bach said

         21  about getting more responsiveness from the Housing

         22  Authority since 2,000 people showed up at public

         23  hearings, not to take away from the efforts and the

         24  effectiveness of the resident turn-out. I want to

         25  say that we have also gotten a lot more
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          2  responsiveness from the Housing Authority since

          3  those residents elected officials, City Council

          4  members, Congress members, made repeated complaints

          5  to HUD about these issues.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Right now the

          7  process is more open, not perfect but still one that

          8  you can work with at this time.

          9                 MS. MAYER: Well, I would say that

         10  they have not addressed the issues --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I understand

         12  that they haven't addressed it --

         13                 MS. MAYER: But for next year there is

         14  an ongoing dialogue and we are hopeful.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Which is better.

         16                 MS. MAYER: Yes.

         17                 MR. HOCKETT: The commitment in it

         18  remains to be seen.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: It remains

         20  vigilant and hopeful, right?

         21                 Council Member Lopez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I don't want to

         23  minimize the participation and the energy that was

         24  put from the part of the tenants in New York City

         25  because they were the ones who opened this process.
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          2  And I want to make that very clear here in this

          3  meeting.

          4                 It was not until they mobilized in

          5  thousands, and it was not just, the lower east side

          6  was not just, it was not just Brooklyn, it was not

          7  just Harlem, it was not just the Bronx. It was

          8  mobilization from adults going in districts who had

          9  to bring five boxes full of tenants' petitions from

         10  her districts to the meeting here in Pace University

         11  that this communication process opened. And it was

         12  not until tenants from our area went to Washington,

         13  D.C., met with HUD officials and notified them of

         14  the lack of communication that was happening from

         15  the NYCHA organization to the tenants.

         16                 And, again, I must recognize Chairman

         17  Martinez apparently have a different view in how to

         18  proceed with these issues. And apparently he is a

         19  more open kind of individual, and I am looking

         20  forward for that. But where the tenants, the tenants

         21  of the NYCHA complex who opened this process when

         22  they clearly mobilized and notified NYCHA that they

         23  are not going to tolerate the lack of communication

         24  with them. That is the way that this happened, and I

         25  am sorry that I have to be a little more stronger

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            148

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  than you people are and I am surprised that you are

          3  not because you know what you went through to get

          4  even the plan, that was denied to give it to you

          5  over and over again, when I requested your assistant

          6  to represent me and represent tenants, we were not

          7  getting all of these documents in any way, shape or

          8  form. Then let's make that clear in regard to what

          9  happened.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, duly

         11  noted.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Mr. Chairman,

         13  just one more point.

         14                 Originally I asked to speak right now

         15  to you because I wanted to thank you for all of the

         16  work that you did and that your organizations did in

         17  order to assist the tenants in the legal matters

         18  that they needed assistance to be able to acquire

         19  the information that otherwise NYCHA was mandated to

         20  give to the tenants by the federal government.

         21                 And I thank you very much for all of

         22  your work and your participation on this.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Ladies,

         24  gentlemen, I want to thank you for your time.

         25                 Council Member Stanley Michels has a
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          2  comment and question.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MICHELS: I am sorry, I

          4  was in the other room but I was listening to what

          5  you were saying.

          6                 Your points are well taken and very

          7  well thought out and I do believe that they will

          8  benefit, the Authority will benefit from more

          9  participation from the residents and I think it is

         10  extremely important, and in early stages, because

         11  not only will they benefit from their thinking and

         12  the fact that they are experienced and know what

         13  goes on in the projects, housing developments, but

         14  also it would help when the decisions are made for

         15  the residents to understand that they have had some

         16  input and it makes it more cooperative and

         17  cooperative tenants and makes for more successful,

         18  successful programs. And I think to an extent it has

         19  been going on at times in the past, and I am sorry

         20  there was a misunderstanding as far as these

         21  hearings are concerned, in Northern Manhattan we

         22  didn't have that problem because we had a huge

         23  turnout in Riverbank and I am sorry to hear it did

         24  not happen in other areas. But I think you play a

         25  vital function and I think what you are doing is
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          2  extremely important, and I would not look at you as

          3  being antagonistic toward the Housing Authority, but

          4  somebody who will be a partner can work with you,

          5  and your suggestions all appear to be very

          6  constructive.

          7                 So, I thank you very much.

          8                 MS. MAYER: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you,

         10  Stanley.

         11                 Ladies, gentlemen, again thank you

         12  for your time, participation and your contribution

         13  to this process.

         14                 Moving along now we call on Hagan

         15  Maconey (sic), out of Senator Connor's Office.

         16                 MR. MARONEY: Thank you, Chairman. It

         17  is Hagan Maroney.

         18                 On behalf of State Senator Martin

         19  Connor, the Democratic Minority Leader.  I

         20  appreciate being able to speak on his behalf. I am

         21  just going to read his testimony to you today.

         22                 The District I represent runs along

         23  the East River of Manhattan from 14th Street to the

         24  Battery and from Greenpoint Avenue to 65th Street.

         25                 With limited exceptions, the
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          2  Manhattan side of the East River north of the

          3  Brooklyn Bridge and south of 14th Street, is an

          4  almost solid wall of NYCHA housing, and I also

          5  represent public housing tenants in Williamsburg,

          6  Brooklyn.

          7                 Given that I represent so many public

          8  housing residents, I am well aware of their

          9  unhappiness with the planning process for NYCHA's

         10  one and five year plans. Due to an inadequate

         11  Resident Advisory Board, a lack of public meetings

         12  and hearings and an insufficient public outreach

         13  campaign to inform the 600,000 people living in

         14  public housing in New York City as their legal right

         15  to participate in the planning process, NYCHA's

         16  original plans clearly lack community input.

         17                 The Department of Housing and Urban

         18  Development regulations require all public Housing

         19  Authorities to establish a Resident Advisory Board.

         20  The role of the Resident Advisory Board is to assist

         21  and make policy recommendations to the Housing

         22  Authorities regarding the developments' annual and

         23  five-year plans. The membership of the RAB must

         24  therefore adequately represent the residents of

         25  public housing.
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          2                 Currently NYCHA maintains an Interim

          3  Council of Presidents as its resident board

          4  structure. But the ICOP was never intended to be a

          5  policy-making body, and with only nine members,

          6  cannot hope to reflect the concerns of the 180,000

          7  families living in NYCHA apartments.

          8                 For example, each of the nine ICOP

          9  members has one vote and represents a seemingly

         10  arbitrary geographical region. The Division of

         11  Representation among the nine representatives is

         12  inconsistent and unfair. Manhattan, with 54,241

         13  housing units, has two ICOP members. Staten Island,

         14  with only 4,860 housing units, has one ICOP member.

         15  These numbers clearly reflect the inadequacy of the

         16  ICOP to serve New York City's public housing

         17  tenants.

         18                 In addition, the structure of the

         19  ICOP is inconsistent with HUD regulations for RAB.

         20  HUD requires that RABs be jurisdiction-wide bodies.

         21  To quality as a jurisdiction-wide Council, NYCHA's

         22  Resident Advisory Board must be formed by presidents

         23  of duly-elected resident councils or through

         24  jurisdiction-wide elections. The ICOP, therefore,

         25  cannot be considered a jurisdiction-wide body, and
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          2  fails to meet HUD guidelines for RAB structure. It

          3  is clear that the concerns of residents are not

          4  being incorporated into the planning process.

          5                 From 1996 to 1998, the Interim

          6  Council of Presidents did not even meet. NYCHA must

          7  comply with HUD regulations and the Quality Housing

          8  and Work Responsibility Act of 1998, and implement a

          9  RAB that provides fair representation to the over

         10  600,000 NYCHA residents. NYCHA must also allocate

         11  the Resident Advisory Board with reasonable

         12  resources to assure its effective functioning as per

         13  HUD regulations.

         14                 The September 29th, 1999 public

         15  hearing on the agency's Fiscal Year 2000 plan was

         16  entirely deficient. The Schimmel Theater of Pace

         17  University was insufficient to support the number of

         18  residents who could reasonably be expected to

         19  attend.

         20                 Close to half of the over 1,000

         21  people who came to listen and speak were denied

         22  access to the hearing. More than half of those who

         23  signed up to speak, almost 40 people, were not given

         24  the opportunity. This inadequacy brings into

         25  question of whether or not NYCHA has fulfilled the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            154

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2  public hearing requirement of federal law.

          3                 The large majority of NYCHA residents

          4  were not properly informed of their right to submit

          5  written testimony, nor were they given ample

          6  opportunity to review NYCHA's plans.

          7                 The second round of public meetings

          8  scheduled after the failure of the September 29th

          9  meeting did not acceptably compensate for the

         10  shortcomings of the September 29th hearing.

         11                 In order to be responsive to the

         12  community's concerns, NYCHA needs to revamp its

         13  public information process so as to better inform

         14  the public of their rights in a clear, timely and

         15  comprehensively manner. Public hearings must be made

         16  more accessible and more inclusive.

         17                 On a positive note, I would like to

         18  acknowledge NYCHA's responsiveness to public opinion

         19  and to its elected officials by way of its revision

         20  of this year's annual plan.

         21                 NYCHA's original plan called for the

         22  demolition of privatization in the public housing

         23  buildings, the elimination of ceiling rents, an

         24  extra bedroom incentive as a deconcentration

         25  initiative and allowing the 40 percent admission
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          2  requirement for extremely low-income residents to

          3  drop to 30 percent using Section 8 funds.

          4                 I am relieved that these proposals

          5  have been eliminated from NYCHA's plans. However,

          6  there remains much to discuss.

          7                 For example, in NYCHA's current plan

          8  there is vague reference to private development of

          9  some of Baruch Houses property on the lower east

         10  side of Manhattan. Clarification of such issues in

         11  next year's plan is a prudent and indeed necessary

         12  step towards greater responsiveness in NYCHA's

         13  planning process.

         14                 Vague references, secrecy and a lack

         15  of adequate information form the basis for the

         16  people's distrust of the NYCHA planning process.

         17                 The passage of the Quality Housing

         18  and Work Responsibility Act of 1998 allows for

         19  substantial policy changes in NYCHA's annual and

         20  five-year plans. But we must be sure that these

         21  changes both represent and benefit the residents of

         22  NYCHA and the society we aim to improve.

         23                 I understand that NYCHA has given

         24  verbal assurances that it will alter and improve its

         25  planning process and Resident Advisory Board to
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          2  reflect the concerns of the community. NYCHA has an

          3  obligation to ensure meaningful input for New York

          4  City's public housing residents. I hope they will

          5  take that obligation seriously. Thank you very much

          6  for your time.

          7                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you

          8  for your testimony. And we give our regards to

          9  Senator Connor.

         10                 Anne K. Johnson, who represents

         11  herself, and does it very well.

         12                 Welcome. Just give your name for the

         13  record, and we are very anxious to hear your

         14  testimony.

         15                 MS. JOHNSON: Thank you. Good morning.

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Good

         17  morning. Good afternoon.

         18                 MS. JOHNSON: Good afternoon, Council

         19  Member Michels and Mr. Chair, wherever he is.

         20  Council members, guests, good morning, good

         21  afternoon.

         22                 My name is Anne Johnson, I am a

         23  member of Community Board 3, Manhattan, and a former

         24  Chairperson of that Board. I am a resident of Alfred

         25  E. Smith Houses on the lower east side, and have
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          2  been for 30 years. I was the vice president of the

          3  Smith Tenants Association for 17 years. My children

          4  grew up there, it is their home, and our neighbors

          5  are like family.

          6                 Many people have asked me how I could

          7  continue to live in the projects. Well, I love

          8  living there. I feel at home there. I do not want to

          9  leave, and neither do any of my fellow tenants.

         10                 Now the federal government wants to

         11  drive people out of public housing. Just where they

         12  think all of us will go is beyond me. New York City

         13  has a major homeless problem, and it will be made

         14  worse if people are forced for their homes. They

         15  talk of a five-year plan that will be reviewed every

         16  year so that each year the tenants must go through a

         17  great amount of suffering, wondering about their

         18  future.

         19                 There is talk of raising rents to

         20  market rate. Who can afford those rents? There is

         21  talk of removing the rent cap which will drive many

         22  working families out of public housing, as though

         23  they wanted to keep working families there.

         24                 There was even talk of offering

         25  working families more bedrooms if they would move
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          2  into the so-called worst project where most of the

          3  welfare families lived.

          4                 My suggestion would be to help the

          5  families already living there to become working

          6  families by forcing the Settlement Houses that pay

          7  very little rent in those projects to offer job

          8  training programs, programs to keep kids in schools,

          9  better day care, et cetera.

         10                 Although the federal government is

         11  being blamed for planning to privatize public

         12  housing, it seems to me that the New York City

         13  Housing Authority is in cahoots with them. Not only

         14  did they refuse to publicize the plan, which they

         15  easily could have in the Housing Authority Journal,

         16  but they gathered a few so-called tenant leaders

         17  together to form a very small resident advisory

         18  board.

         19                 My own Tenant Association President

         20  is on that Board and she didn't even bring back

         21  details of the plan to our tenants association

         22  meeting. The Resident Advisory Board hardly

         23  represented any of us. We need to expand the Board

         24  to include at least one representative from each

         25  project.
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          2                 We also need assistance from the City

          3  Council to monitor the plan from year to year. Most

          4  of all, we need a permanent plan to keep public

          5  housing public. We will not be driven from our

          6  homes.

          7                 Thank you.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you

          9  very much. We have a question from Council Member

         10  Lopez.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I just wanted

         12  some points of clarification. How did you learn

         13  about the hearings that were going to happen on the

         14  29th of September in Pace University?

         15                 MS. JOHNSON: From your office.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And how did you

         17  learn from my office about that?

         18                 MS. JOHNSON: Well, I was called, I

         19  believe, by one of your staff members to attend the

         20  meeting.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Did you ever

         22  hear any notification before that?

         23                 MS. JOHNSON: No.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Did you receive

         25  any leaflet under your door before that from NYCHA
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          2  telling you that these hearings were taking place?

          3                 MS. JOHNSON: No.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Did you ever

          5  receive a document printed in the journal of the

          6  NYCHA projects that indicated that this was taking

          7  place?

          8                 MS. JOHNSON: No.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do you read

         10  that journal?

         11                 MS. JOHNSON: I read the journal from

         12  cover to cover. And I also want to say that at the

         13  second meeting I attended which was after the Pace

         14  meeting when they finally started listening to all

         15  of us, I brought a copy of the Housing Authority

         16  journal and held it up to the general manager and

         17  said to him, you have this news paper that you put

         18  under the door every month, why couldn't you have

         19  publicized the plan in this journal? And his answer

         20  to me was, oh, that's a very good idea.

         21                 And then of course in the next issue

         22  there was something about it.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then prior to

         24  that issue there was no notification whatsoever of

         25  the September 29th meeting or the preparation to put
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          2  a plan for one year or five years that I was going

          3  to deal with the future regulations of NYCHA?

          4                 MS. JOHNSON: Absolutely none.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You are aware

          6  of your tenants, the other neighbors that you have,

          7  of receiving notifications?

          8                 MS. JOHNSON: No.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         10                 MS. JOHNSON: And in fact, as I have

         11  said before, our Tenants Association president, not

         12  only is she a member of RAB, but she is the

         13  president of the Council of Presidents, she attends

         14  meetings all the time and she never brought back the

         15  particulars of this plan to a tenants association

         16  meeting.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Do you go to

         18  tenant association meetings?

         19                 MS. JOHNSON: Yes, I do.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I am just

         22  curious, this individual who you said did not come

         23  back and give you the information, the president of

         24  Presidents --

         25                 MS. JOHNSON: Right.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            162

          1  COMMITTEE ON HOUSING AND BUILDINGS

          2                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Did she

          3  know about these meetings?

          4                 MS. JOHNSON: Did she know about the

          5  meeting on the 29th?

          6                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: She just

          7  didn't impart the knowledge or she had no knowledge?

          8                 MS. JOHNSON: Oh, she was there at the

          9  meeting on the 29th. She certainly did know about

         10  it, they were all there.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: They

         12  didn't tell you about it?

         13                 MS. JOHNSON: No, they absolutely did

         14  not tell us about it. They didn't publicize it. If

         15  it hadn't been for Council --

         16                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Did you

         17  ask her why she didn't tell you?

         18                 MS. JOHNSON: Well, not really. I

         19  think I knew the answer to that question. I really

         20  think that they wanted to hide this plan from us.

         21  They had no intention of telling the tenants,

         22  because they knew how upset and angry we would be as

         23  we demonstrated on the 29th and at the other

         24  meetings.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you
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          2  very much.

          3                 MS. JOHNSON: Thank you.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Are you aware

          5  that in the developments of the Lower East Side,

          6  some of that is in my jurisdiction, you were aware

          7  of information that was disseminated by NYCHA

          8  indicating that what I was telling the tenants was

          9  not true?

         10                 MS. JOHNSON: I am sorry?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Are you

         12  familiarized with the information that was

         13  distributed in the NYCHA project, saying that what

         14  I, Councilwoman, was telling the tenants was not

         15  true? Are you familiarized with that?

         16                 MS. JOHNSON: I didn't see anything

         17  that was particularly pointing out that you were

         18  giving them misinformation, no.

         19                 I mean, they have been saying, I

         20  believe they have been saying there is a lot of

         21  misinformation going on, but I don't think you were

         22  singled out in particular. But they definitely said

         23  there was misinformation being put out.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         25                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank
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          2  you.

          3                 The next witness is Ms. Rispoli. Is

          4  Ms. Rispoli here?

          5                 After that it will be Lillion M.

          6  Rivera. Is she here?

          7                 MS. RIVERA: Yes.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are

          9  next, so be ready.

         10                 Thank you very much, Ms. Rispoli.

         11  Please state your name for the record and please

         12  give us your testimony.

         13                 I might say that you have very nice

         14  handwriting.

         15                 MS. RISPOLI: Can you hear me now?

         16  Thank you.

         17                 I am glad to be here. My name is

         18  Linda Rispoli and I am a proud resident of the West

         19  Brighton Houses in Staten Island. I would like to

         20  voice my concern in regard to the New York City

         21  Housing Authority's annual and five-year plan that

         22  Housing is submitting to HUD.

         23                 I will first start with the proposed

         24  master leasing plan and mixed finance plan.

         25                 What these two terms don't convey in
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          2  simple language is the selling or privatizing of the

          3  New York City Housing Authority properties.

          4                 Both plans depend on Section 8

          5  subsidies, which is not the basic principle of

          6  public housing.

          7                 Section 8, or vouchers, which is

          8  mentioned repeatedly in the proposed annual and

          9  five-year plan, would have to be requalified for

         10  maybe annually, which changes the entire perception

         11  of public housing and what public housing means to

         12  the existing residents of public housing.

         13                 As a person who is handicapped and

         14  living on a fixed income, I have decided to spend

         15  the rest of my life in the New York City Housing

         16  Authority handicapped apartment. I did this for the

         17  permanency public housing affords a person of

         18  limited means.

         19                 No one, when I originally applied to

         20  housing, ever mentioned that the entire secure

         21  environment of public housing was going to take a

         22  radical change, particularly if you were poor and

         23  had few economic choices.

         24                 I oppose any and all attempts of the

         25  New York City Housing Authority to sell any
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          2  properties to private developers or to start new

          3  housing proposals that are privately developed.

          4  Private development with either vouchers or Section

          5  8 is not my conception of public housing.

          6                 I predict if privatization is allowed

          7  in the New York City Housing Authority, that the

          8  City will see homelessness like it has never seen

          9  before.

         10                 Also, on the federal front, we must

         11  be diligent to assure the preservation of the

         12  amendment which keeps the cap on public Housing

         13  Authority's rents 30 percent of income. This has

         14  also been threatened.

         15                 It is also my understanding that the

         16  New York City Housing Authority plans to end ceiling

         17  rents possibly in two years and go to market rents,

         18  which would price our working residents out of

         19  public housing. I am opposed to the ending of

         20  ceiling rents.

         21                 I also oppose the leasing of public

         22  housing apartments to non-public housing residents

         23  at market value rents.

         24                 The New York City Housing Authority's

         25  annual and five-year plan process has been rushed
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          2  without enough consulting with New York City Housing

          3  Authority residents.

          4                 I was never informed by my tenant

          5  association president of the importance and the

          6  radical changes that New York City Housing Authority

          7  is proposing.

          8                 If it wasn't for my own diligence, I

          9  would know nothing about the proposed changes the

         10  New York City Housing Authority is proposing.

         11                 Please do not let New York City

         12  Housing Authority demolish or privatize public

         13  housing.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you

         16  very much. Very articulately said.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Can I ask a

         18  question?

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Sure.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: From what part

         21  of Manhattan or Brooklyn you come from?

         22                 MS. RISPOLI: I am from Staten Island.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: From Staten

         24  Island.

         25                 MS. RISPOLI: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then as a

          3  resident of an area in Staten Island, are you aware

          4  if the residents in that area receive any

          5  notification in regard to these changes?

          6                 MS. RISPOLI: The only time -- I heard

          7  in two ways, one on my own, being friends with

          8  someone that works with an elected official, I get a

          9  heads-up call, that is how I found out about it.

         10                 And not until after the September

         11  29th public hearing at Pace University, which I

         12  found out through a friend the day before, actually

         13  the evening before the meeting did I think know,

         14  after the September 29th public hearing at Pace,

         15  then we did receive something in the mail that

         16  trickled down to district meetings, but we weren't

         17  allowed at the district meeting to make a

         18  presentation or speak. We are allowed a limited

         19  amount of questions.

         20                 I had 19 and I was allowed to ask

         21  four. It was not an open meeting.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Then what you

         23  are saying is the meeting that occurred in Staten

         24  Island, in order for the tenants of NYCHA to be able

         25  to put their opinions and have an input in the plan
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          2  was not there?

          3                 MS. RISPOLI: That's right. We were

          4  only allowed a limited amount of questions.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: There was no

          6  input to request changes from the plan or to

          7  initiate changes in the plan or to indicate that you

          8  were in disagreement with what the proposal was?

          9                 MS. RISPOLI: No, we had to couch

         10  whatever questions we were able to ask, and they

         11  were very limited, in a question form, we could not

         12  make a statement.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I thank you

         14  very much.

         15                 MS. RISPOLI: Thank you.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And I

         17  congratulate you for being so aware of your

         18  responsibilities as a tenant in your surroundings,

         19  and I congratulate you for that particularly when

         20  you are not even notified about what you should be

         21  notified to begin with.

         22                 MS. RISPOLI: Thank you very much.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are

         24  welcome.

         25                 Next we have Lillion Rivera.
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          2                 MS. RIVERA: Good afternoon. My name

          3  is Lillion Rivera, I am a resident of Baruch

          4  projects, which is a public residence of the lower

          5  east side.

          6                 I would like to take this time out

          7  and thank everyone who is still here to listen to

          8  what I have to say as a tenant of NYCHA. I would

          9  particularly like to thank my Councilperson

         10  Margarita Lopez, because if it wasn't for her

         11  diligent efforts, I would not have been aware of

         12  what the NYCHA plan was, the public hearing. I was

         13  not notified, I did not receive any flyers, any

         14  notification whatsoever through management office or

         15  NYCHA whatsoever about this plan or the availability

         16  to me as a tenant of this plan.

         17                 It was through Ms. Lopez' office and

         18  the efforts and the strong determination of the

         19  residents of the lower east side that we did phone

         20  banking, we did stuffing under doors, word of mouth,

         21  notifying other tenants, and residents of public

         22  housing.

         23                 We went to this hearing on September

         24  29th, when we got there the space was not adequate.

         25  It was maybe 700 people could fit in this auditorium
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          2  and there were over 2,000 people. That was an insult

          3  to me because this was a public hearing and you have

          4  600,000 residents in public housing and you are

          5  holding a public hearing in a space that only houses

          6  safely, approximately 700 people.

          7                 The timing wasn't adequate. I wished

          8  to speak before the panel and there wasn't

          9  sufficient time. I want to thank NYCHA for the

         10  courtesy that they have been extending to us, but I

         11  think that is as of a result of the large amounts of

         12  people who have attended these public hearings and

         13  also the meeting we had with HUD in Washington,

         14  D.C., which I also went and testified.

         15                 One of the things that I would like

         16  to mention here is that the procedure, this process

         17  that to make it public to the residents is not

         18  adequate and my biggest fear is it wasn't adequate

         19  then and change has been promised, but I can't hold

         20  that to heart because I am not sure that I can trust

         21  the people who made those promises.

         22                 My concern is that for the next year

         23  plan, I need to know that I will be informed with

         24  sufficient time. I need to know that I will be

         25  involved in the process for the next five-year plan.
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          2                 I would like a commitment, or I need

          3  this Committee to oversee that NYCHA keeps their

          4  commitment to expand the RAB and provide with

          5  adequate resources and that NYCHA agree to address

          6  the concerns that the tenants bring, not just the

          7  bear bones that the law requires. And this is what I

          8  am asking of this Committee and I wish to again

          9  express my gratitude, and especially to Council

         10  Member Margarita Lopez for making me aware of what

         11  is going on in Housing and keeping me informed.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are

         14  welcome.

         15                 All me to say this to you, first of

         16  all. We are very pleased you are here and I

         17  appreciate you expressing your gratitude to the

         18  Councilwoman who deserves it.

         19                 MS. RIVERA: Absolutely.

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But you

         21  shouldn't have to really be that grateful for us

         22  because we are doing our job and you are a citizen

         23  and have every right to be before this Committee and

         24  express yourself.

         25                 It is nice that you are here, but the
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          2  fact of the matter is that that seat you occupy you

          3  paid for.

          4                 MS. RIVERA: Well, you know what? It

          5  is also very nice to thank people that you elected

          6  that go out on a limb to do things for you, because

          7  I have elected other officials that haven't served

          8  me as my Council member has. So, I needed to give a

          9  public statement, I needed to make this so people

         10  are aware and that she is aware.

         11                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I think

         12  that that is perfectly proper and I am very glad you

         13  did. But what I am saying is, you were saying thank

         14  you for allowing me to come and testify before this

         15  Committee, and the fact of the matter is, it is your

         16  right to be here.

         17                 MS. RIVERA: I am aware of that. But

         18  if Ms. Lopez didn't make me aware of that fact, I

         19  wouldn't have -- I wasn't informed. I am a new

         20  resident.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: You are

         22  very well represented.

         23                 MS. RIVERA: Thank you.

         24                 I am a new resident to NYCHA, I have

         25  only been living there a year, so I don't know the
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          2  formalities.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I would

          4  say an unsolicited testimonial to your Council

          5  member, that if you listen to her you will do very

          6  well.

          7                 MS. RIVERA: I realize that.

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Okay.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Mr. Chairman?

         10                 Are you aware if in any meeting that

         11  occurred in Baruch Houses, NYCHA representatives

         12  indicated the information that I was giving out was

         13  inaccurate with regard to the changes that they were

         14  proposing?

         15                 MS. RIVERA: Well, I personally did

         16  not attend that meeting because they held a tenant

         17  meeting on the same day that the hearings, public

         18  hearings were being held, a tenant meeting, so there

         19  was a conflict there. And so I chose to go to the

         20  public hearing and not the tenants association

         21  meeting.

         22                 Yes, by tenants that live in Baruch,

         23  have informed me that the administration there has

         24  stated that Margarita Lopez, Council Member and her

         25  office, was misinforming tenants of the NYCHA plan
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          2  and that that was being used as a scare tactic.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In your

          4  opinion, the information that my office provided to

          5  you was accurate?

          6                 MS. RIVERA: Absolutely.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: It was any

          8  discrepancy between my information and what we found

          9  in the NYCHA proposal?

         10                 MS. RIVERA: The only discrepancy that

         11  I found was the information that NYCHA was telling

         12  me, not the information that you were telling me.

         13  You were being very honest, straightforward, and

         14  NYCHA was not being open and sincere. So, the

         15  discrepancy was on their behalf and not the

         16  information I attained from you or your office.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You just said

         18  that the night of the meeting in Pace University you

         19  had to make a choice --

         20                 MS. RIVERA: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: A choice of

         22  going to your tenant association meeting, or going

         23  to the NYCHA general meeting.

         24                 MS. RIVERA: Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: This meeting
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          2  that took place that night, taking away the tenants

          3  from Baruch Houses to attend the general meeting, in

          4  your opinion harmed the possibilities of the NYCHA

          5  tenants in Baruch Houses to understand very clear

          6  there is a proposed change that is going to occur in

          7  Baruch Houses?

          8                 MS. RIVERA: Absolutely. I believe

          9  that it was divisive and destructive.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         11                 MS. RIVERA: On the behalf of NYCHA.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you very

         13  much.

         14                 MS. RIVERA: Thank you.

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: The next

         16  is Anu Kalyanam.

         17                 Pronounce your name for us.

         18                 MS. KALYANAM: Anu Kalyanam.

         19                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 MS. KALYANAM: First of all, good

         22  afternoon, to everybody who is still here. I wanted

         23  to thank the Committee for allowing us this

         24  opportunity to speak.

         25                 I am here today representing a
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          2  community-based agency, Good Old Lower East Side,

          3  GOLES.

          4                 GOLES is a community-based agency

          5  whose purpose is to help tenants fight for their

          6  rights. GOLES works with public housing tenants in

          7  the lower east side to advocate on their behalf,

          8  regarding any housing issue they face, from

          9  maintenance issues, to problems with management.

         10                 One of the greatest injustices that

         11  GOLES sees is the proposed NYCHA plan that could

         12  change the face of public housing in every way,

         13  shape and form. The worst part of the plan is not

         14  that NYCHA is trying to gentrify public housing by

         15  bringing in more middle income families and keeping

         16  the poorest families out.

         17                 The worst part of the plan is not

         18  that poor families have been on the waiting list for

         19  years now have to wait even longer because richer

         20  families receive first priority.

         21                 The worst part of the plan is that

         22  NYCHA refuses to give any alternative housing to

         23  those tenants they displaced during major

         24  renovations.

         25                 All of these aspects regarding the
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          2  plan is definitely frightenting, but worse still, is

          3  that NYCHA, the governing body that is supposed to

          4  work for public housing tenants that are supposed to

          5  offer affordable, safe housing, did not even bother

          6  to inform the tenants of their plans.

          7                 NYCHA offered no ways to receive

          8  input from tenants regarding the plan.

          9                 NYCHA chose to keep public housing

         10  tenants in the dark about the housing situation,

         11  trying to blindside them so they could pass the plan

         12  with as little fight as possible.

         13                 Public housing tenants refuse to sit

         14  still. We rallied and protested the hearing on

         15  September 29th, 1999 at Pace University, even when

         16  we are not allowed to enter the auditorium, and we

         17  have all heard much about that this afternoon.

         18                 Public Housing Residents of the Lower

         19  East Side, PHRLES, organized and met with Housing

         20  and Urban Development in Washington, D.C., and

         21  demonstrated to them the need to examine NYCHA's

         22  procedures in passing the plan.

         23                 PHRLES will continue to plan and

         24  rally behind local politicians, local organizations

         25  and public housing tenants until we reach an
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          2  agreement.

          3                 Homelessness currently is a pressing

          4  issue in the City, we all know this.

          5                 Right now the City Administration is

          6  trying to get rid of homeless shelters, while NYCHA

          7  is trying to get rid of public housing. If NYCHA's

          8  plan passes, there will be no place for ex-public

          9  housing residents to go but on the streets. But if

         10  the City's proposal passes, these displaced

         11  residents will also not have the right to shelter.

         12                 Everyone has a right to shelter, even

         13  the poor, regardless of what NYCHA or anyone else

         14  thinks, and if this plan passes, thousands of

         15  families will no longer have basic human rights.

         16                 Thank you very much for your time.

         17                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank

         18  you.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I have a

         20  question.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Yes.

         22                 MS. KALYANAM: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: How did you

         24  begin notifying about this process? How did your

         25  organization, how good Lower East Side found
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          2  notification or information about what was happening

          3  or what was being proposed for the NYCHA project?

          4                 MS. KALYANAM: We found out

          5  information pretty much through your office through

          6  contacts we have with your office who informed us of

          7  what was happening and in the process we told our

          8  tenants, our clients who are public housing tenants

          9  what was happening.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Did you receive

         11  any tenants in your agency that came and notified

         12  you about this prior to our participation in

         13  notifying the tenants?

         14                 MS. KALYANAM: Not that I am aware of.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you.

         16                 MS. KALYANAM: Thank you.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Oh, one more

         18  question.

         19                 MS. KALYANAM: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: The night of

         21  the 29th, the September 29th meeting, in that night,

         22  you were present there?

         23                 MS. KALYANAM: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Did you witness

         25  people not being allowed to come in inside of that
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          2  meeting?

          3                 MS. KALYANAM: Absolutely. I was not

          4  allowed to go inside because of that meeting.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: You were ready

          6  to testify in that meeting?

          7                 MS. KALYANAM: I had my little number

          8  on my sheet saying I was number 66, I think I was

          9  66.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Did you

         11  testify?

         12                 MS. KALYANAM: No, I did not.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Why?

         14                 MS. KALYANAM: Not enough time.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Thank you very

         16  much.

         17                 MS. KALYANAM: Thank you.

         18                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Thank you

         19  very much.

         20                 Angel Perez.

         21                 MR. PEREZ: Thank you very much. Let

         22  me say something first, please.

         23                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Please

         24  state your name.

         25                 MR. PEREZ: Yes. My name is Angel
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          2  Perez, and I live at Elliott Chelsea Houses on the

          3  west side, 26th Street. And I am here today on my

          4  own as a resident of NYCHA.

          5                 But also, I am very involved with my

          6  tenant association, which is Elliott Chelsea Houses.

          7                 This is my first time to come into

          8  this meeting, but I have been getting a lot of

          9  answers from my own questions that I brought today,

         10  so I am not going to read.

         11                 I just come here just to get more

         12  information to bring back into my community because

         13  we have been left also without a lot of information,

         14  especially for senior people living in the

         15  neighborhood.

         16                 But I find out something that called

         17  my attention. I believe this is a systematic problem

         18  with the tenant association presidents citywide.

         19  They are not getting a lot of information for the

         20  tenants living in the projects. When they were

         21  alerted, they were alerted because they promised to

         22  fight for tenant residents. So, I would like to ask

         23  this City Council Member, if they can look into and

         24  see what they can do with NYCHA, to come together

         25  with the Advisory Council Residents or the board
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          2  residents, to find out why many residents, they

          3  don't give the tenants the right information when

          4  all of this situation is going to happen. Because

          5  when they promise just to fight for us, they never

          6  do. I can't say this is only one borough or one

          7  housing development.

          8                 But also, I got to tell about -- I am

          9  very concerned about the Housing Authority's plan,

         10  because the Housing Authority did not give to my

         11  residents enough information in the beginning.

         12                 But now, since not September 29th, is

         13  that we have been making contact with the officials

         14  elected, we are getting more officials elected, we

         15  are getting more information. My official elected is

         16  Christine Quinn, she is always seeing what we do and

         17  trying to give us our best information regarding

         18  housing.

         19                 Also, I would like to thank Margarita

         20  Lopez from the lower east side because she is a real

         21  fighter for housing. She is always behind tenants

         22  and this is a situation that today, according to my

         23  salary, I will be -- I am a little bit scared about

         24  it, because according to all the information we are

         25  receiving or getting about market rent, I can't pay
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          2  in five years maybe $800 or $1,000 or $2,000. So, at

          3  this point, I believe that the NYCHA must be working

          4  with the suggestions, that have been requested, that

          5  the tenants and residents are giving to them,

          6  especially for working families.

          7                 There is one suggestion that was

          8  given out, like if they are getting for the gross

          9  income for the full family, from the gross income

         10  they must take our pay rent net income.

         11                 I am a family that has three

         12  children, wife and myself, and from my gross income

         13  my rent, even I have two bedrooms, I pay a little

         14  bit more from the ceiling rent. So, I have the

         15  opportunity to explain the situation to the Chairman

         16  Mr. Martinez this morning and he was surprised.

         17  Well, not really surprised, it is how different

         18  developments they work out the rent payment.

         19                 So, also, I have something that was

         20  very clear to me. The 50 percent or 30 percent

         21  information about employment, that NYCHA has to give

         22  it to the residents according to federal law, there

         23  are many, many developments, they never, never give

         24  to the public information regarding this employment.

         25                 There are many people I know from now
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          2  today that they have a good skill, but again it

          3  called my attention today that many tenant

          4  association presidents, they like to give it to the

          5  management offices, so the residents, they never get

          6  information from what kind of opportunity we can

          7  have inside to get better jobs.

          8                 Another situation that called my

          9  attention was we need to get the real information to

         10  explain to the community regarding to building with

         11  foundation problems because where I live, I live in

         12  most of my community, like 50 percent City-owned, so

         13  most of them get the scare about all of these

         14  comments regarding the five-year plan, and I have

         15  been taking myself and explaining to them, that how

         16  is this not going to demolish the building? They

         17  will be doing something that would really build a

         18  need, but they will be putting some place about we

         19  need to get more education to our residents,

         20  especially to those who really -- where I live, in

         21  the community we have more Asian people, Hispanic,

         22  European people who have come into our country, and

         23  most people who don't speak English, they need to

         24  get more information to bring them into our tenant

         25  association meetings so we can have the opportunity
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          2  to explain.

          3                 But basically I would like to thank

          4  all of you for giving me this opportunity to be here

          5  this morning. This is the first time to come into

          6  this Chamber, and, Mr. Chairman, this won't be the

          7  first time to come. I will be coming for all the

          8  meetings. I was called this morning to be here, I

          9  called my job sick, okay? Just to be here.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You look very

         11  sick. Get him aspirin. You are on TV you know.

         12                 MS. PEREZ: Well, sorry. I believe now

         13  there can be good and real information to my

         14  community. My community, I believe they deserve

         15  better information than they have been given by

         16  tenant association citywide.

         17                 Thank you very much.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, I want to

         19  thank you for coming, sir.

         20                 And don't make it your last time.

         21                 John --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Fratter, I

         23  think is the name.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Okay, Fratter?

         25  Identify yourself, sir.
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          2                 MR. FRATTER: Good afternoon. My name

          3  is John Fratter. I am a democratic district leader

          4  on the lower east side. I want to thank this

          5  Committee for holding this hearing on this very

          6  important issue.

          7                 You know, we have many benefits being

          8  New Yorkers, being born and raised in New York. And

          9  one of the benefits that we have that other people

         10  don't have in other parts of the country is we could

         11  tell very fast when we are being snowed. And today

         12  during this hearing, during NYCHA's presentation, we

         13  sat in the middle of a blizzard. I mean, they

         14  basically told us and they lied when they said that

         15  NYCHA residents were notified about this plan and

         16  about these hearings. Again, I know, it has been

         17  said over and over again, if it wasn't for

         18  Councilwoman Margarita Lopez and her office, no one

         19  on the lower east side would have even known this

         20  plan existed.

         21                 What NYCHA does is they utilize their

         22  tenant leaders, and basically the biggest problem

         23  that I see with our NYCHA developments in some of

         24  our cases is you have tenant leaders that are bought

         25  off by NYCHA. Their families are offered jobs and
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          2  once they get a job they can't criticize.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: That is not

          4  unique with NYCHA. You are aware of that.

          5                 MR. FRATTER: I know it is not. And to

          6  show you how wide spread this non-notification was,

          7  although I am speaking as a district leader and the

          8  life where I earn a living I am a district manager

          9  for Community Board 11 in the Bronx, and we have

         10  three NYCHA developments, four NYCHA developments in

         11  my district, and not one of them were also notified

         12  about what was going on.

         13                 So, it is widespread. It wasn't just

         14  the lower east side or Manhattan, it was all over

         15  the City where notification wasn't done.

         16                 Getting on this plan, one thing that

         17  I found insulting was where they were talking about

         18  distressed housing and how they were determining

         19  distressed housing, where if you have a development

         20  that has a larger amount of single parent families,

         21  that is distressed housing, that is an insult.

         22                 I know a lot of single-parent

         23  families that are doing very well and are very

         24  productive citizens, and for them to stigmatize

         25  single-parent families, or even families on welfare,
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          2  was a disgrace.

          3                 The bottom line is they want to

          4  really look at distressed housing, they should look

          5  at their negligence where they are not repairing the

          6  developments, where they are not locking the doors

          7  and where they are not plastering the holes in the

          8  apartment. That is distressed housing, not people

          9  that are living in housing.

         10                 I agree, and I understand the concept

         11  of wanting to have an economic mix. But I will be

         12  damned if I am going to allow economic mix on the

         13  backs of poor people and that is what they are

         14  looking to do.

         15                 We have a large amount of people on

         16  the lower east side that have been waiting 15 to 20

         17  years for housing, they are single, they are

         18  doubled, tripled up in apartments, and just to

         19  bypass these people to create an economic mix is a

         20  disgrace.

         21                 So, I am urging this Committee to

         22  really look at this and have oversight over this.

         23                 The other thing is, I know it is not

         24  part of this hearing, one issue that has been raised

         25  to me over and over again is when a NYCHA resident
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          2  puts in a ticket to have a repair done. Years ago

          3  what used to happen was the tenant would get a copy

          4  of that ticket. They stopped doing that a few years

          5  ago, probably about five years ago.

          6                 Now what happens is when the tenant

          7  doesn't get the repair and goes back to their

          8  management office and complains I put in this

          9  request to have that hole fixed, they are told, oh,

         10  we have no record of that request.

         11                 So, I want to urge this Committee to

         12  see about mandating the tenants that live in NYCHA

         13  do get a copy of their tickets for now on, just for

         14  proof that they did put in that repair letter.

         15                 And again, I want to thank this

         16  Committee for this hearing.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: And we want to

         18  thank you, Mr. District Leader, for taking the time

         19  to come here and represent your constituents very

         20  well.

         21                 MR. FRATTER: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Joseph

         23  Garver. To be followed by Ray Normandeau and Steve

         24  Adams, and that will conclude our list of witnesses

         25  for the day.
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          2                 MR. GARVER: Good afternoon, Chairman

          3  Spigner and distinguished members of the Committee.

          4  First of all, thank you very much for giving me the

          5  opportunity in the concept of true democratic

          6  participation and civic responsibility to testify

          7  here this afternoon.

          8                 I wanted to thank you especially,

          9  Chairman Spigner, because had it not been the good

         10  fortune last evening that I met you and Mr. Goldman

         11  on the street, I did not have any knowledge of this

         12  hearing.

         13                 So, I would like to, number one,

         14  discuss with you what type of outreach did your

         15  Committee do to the resident leaders? And I would

         16  like to surface to you the various vantage groups of

         17  resident leaders of which NYCHA has, is a part of

         18  NYCHA. First of all, on a development level you have

         19  a tenant association of the respective developments

         20  that is composed of an executive board of maybe

         21  five, six or sometimes seven members. Then you have

         22  a community center advisory board, which is also

         23  composed of a number of individuals, and this is

         24  mandated under 964 of the Code of federal

         25  regulations.
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          2                 In addition, those housing

          3  developments that have tenant patrols, have a group

          4  of tenant patrol members, as well as a tenant patrol

          5  captain.

          6                 Okay, on a district-wide level we

          7  have now what is called the Council of Presidents,

          8  formerly known as the Interim Council of Presidents

          9  and when I was the Executive Board member of

         10  Brooklyn West, it was called the Tenants Advisory

         11  Council.

         12                 Now, a quick biographical sketch of

         13  myself: I have lived in public housing since 1957,

         14  in Douglas Houses. I now live in Independence Towers

         15  in Brooklyn West. I work for the City of New York. I

         16  have a master's degree in public administration and

         17  I am quite interested in exposing the right and the

         18  wrong of public housing.

         19                 Okay, I would like to discuss with

         20  you, it is good that I am one of the last speakers,

         21  so I heard some questions and comments that were

         22  raised by some of the Speakers, and I am going to

         23  try to educate you as to some of the points.

         24                 Okay, for the meeting on September

         25  29th, 1999, I was aware that this meeting was
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          2  occurring in Independence Towers and other

          3  developments in Brooklyn, the flyers were posted,

          4  they were posted in the buildings, they were posted

          5  in community centers, they were posted in management

          6  offices.

          7                 In addition, by attending the then

          8  ICOP meetings, okay, Diane Jackson of Brooklyn West

          9  made us aware. However, as those of you who are

         10  acquainted with the old testament recall the concept

         11  of Sidom and Gamolra (phonetic), so what does the

         12  Housing Authority do? They make available the plan,

         13  so as a public policy analyst, I did a comparative

         14  on site inspection of two places. I went to 250

         15  Broadway where this supposed plan was available for

         16  introspection by residents and any other members of

         17  the public. You had a table that was maybe this size

         18  with two chairs, so if five people came, they had to

         19  wait to get the plan that was chained behind the

         20  barbed wire fence, okay? So this occurred at 250

         21  Broadway, at the Department of Housing Applications

         22  at 350 Livingston Street, it was super. I felt like

         23  I was in the Waldorf Astoria. You came in, gave them

         24  a piece of identification, they gave you the plan

         25  and you sat down on a nice couch in the waiting room
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          2  and you could take all the research.

          3                 Okay, another shortfall. The

          4  supporting documents, and this was clearly indicated

          5  in the notice, were only available at 250 Broadway.

          6  That is wrong.

          7                 Number two, the hours of operation at

          8  these locations was only during regular business

          9  hours. So, I had to take some of my annual leave

         10  time to go to read the plan. The average worker who

         11  lives with the average residents of public housing

         12  could not do so.

         13                 Okay, in addition to say that it is

         14  on the Internet, how many residents in public

         15  housing, number one, have access to the Internet,

         16  maybe unfortunately do not know what the Internet

         17  is, nor do they have computers, because this is not

         18  a real way of analyzing.

         19                 Now, I did go through the entire

         20  plan, so I came to Pace University, I came very

         21  early, I went inside and I got a number, number 51.

         22  I told them I am going to the synagogue to say my

         23  afternoon prayers, okay? I said I will be back in a

         24  half hour. I came back, I was refused permission to

         25  gain egress, okay? Until I recall the Councilperson
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          2  Lopez responded with a group of residents, they

          3  finally let us in. However, my number, number 51 was

          4  not reached.

          5                 So, now let me list you some items

          6  that I find wrong with the plan.

          7                 Okay, the plan indicates that various

          8  residents are made available as to the standards

          9  that the management office uses in their various

         10  technical publications. The plan should have

         11  enumerated and detailed the names of these

         12  documents, such as the management, the management

         13  manual, the standard procedures manual, the GMs, the

         14  security manual, the payroll manual, how could you

         15  even, if I did read the plan three times, but I

         16  would like to read as a policy analyst source

         17  documents to give an in-depth oversight and

         18  introspection.

         19                 Okay, in addition, it was hardly ever

         20  mentioned on the issue of personnel how can you

         21  concern yourself with management, if you don't

         22  discuss it with the basic ingredients of any

         23  organization is personnel, financial resources in

         24  personnel?

         25                 I wish that your Committee, at a
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          2  subsequent hearing, and I will be glad to take you

          3  around to show you, productivity standards of

          4  Housing Authority personnel, sleeping in basements,

          5  not wearing their badges on their outer most

          6  garment, congregating, flirting with females, just

          7  engaging in wasting of time.

          8                 Now, on concept number 13 of this

          9  plan which I got this morning, it talks about the

         10  merger. I would like to talk a little about the

         11  merger.

         12                 Okay, in 1995, the New York City

         13  Housing Authority Police Department that was

         14  established on December 15th, 1952 was merged into

         15  the New York City Police Department.

         16                 Unfortunately the merger is not a

         17  merger, okay? Number one, there was a marked

         18  reduction of uniformed members of the service of the

         19  former Housing Authority Police Department who are

         20  now assigned to the Housing Bureau.

         21                 Number two, subsequent to the merger,

         22  various police service areas had their personnel

         23  transferred from a police service area into the New

         24  York City Police Department. And case in point?

         25  Portions of PSA 9 in the Far Rockaways, in the 101st
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          2  Precinct, and the Staten Island Housing Unit was

          3  taken away from the Housing Bureau of the New York

          4  City Police Department and placed under the command

          5  of the commander of patrol borough of Staten Island

          6  of the New York City Police Department, which makes

          7  it less and less.

          8                 Number two, the record rooms have

          9  been abolished. The report says that there is

         10  on-site community policing officers. This is not

         11  true.

         12                 I go through various meetings

         13  throughout Brooklyn West and I am the First Vice

         14  President of the PSA 3 Tenants Council, and we hear

         15  Police Service Number 3 Resident Police Council, and

         16  I hear every month, number one, there is a lack --

         17  an increased diminution of the number of police

         18  officers that are assigned to respective

         19  developments.

         20                 Number two, all of the intelligence

         21  files that were formerly in the Housing Police

         22  Record Rooms are no longer there. And I grew up in

         23  Douglas Houses, if you had a lock-out, the Housing

         24  Police Officer knew who lived in that apartment. You

         25  no longer do that. They no longer know it. They no
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          2  longer know on an individual development basis in

          3  the development, not in a PSA, which the PSAs are

          4  now built no longer under development, okay? And PSA

          5  4, Council Member Lopez, they are building the PSA,

          6  they are going to take it out of Vladick Houses and

          7  it is going to be built on an off-site. They have

          8  gone away, the housing police service areas are no

          9  longer being built on development, okay? So this is

         10  number one. Very bad. Very bad. Very bad.

         11                 Okay, now, the plan in attachment D

         12  talks about drug elimination. I heard it was

         13  mentioned that there is a problem with drug

         14  elimination and I have to echo that. Funds for drug

         15  elimination are being used in all kinds of sources.

         16  I happen to attend, since Chairman Martinez, and

         17  this is to his credit, opened up the board meetings,

         18  okay, to residents. In fact, at 2:00 this afternoon

         19  is going to be the board meeting that was

         20  rescheduled from 10:00. I go there and I testify and

         21  I go through the calendar, and I see the drug

         22  elimination money is not being spent for what drug

         23  elimination should be. This should be the subject of

         24  a future audit.

         25                 Okay, now, before we go into the
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          2  plan, we have to discuss how can we adopt a one-year

          3  plan, a five-year plan, if we can't do basics?

          4                 The Mayor's Management Report of

          5  which I taught when Councilman Spigner told me about

          6  the hearings, I thought it was going to be the MMR

          7  oversight, so I quickly reviewed the HA portion.

          8  Okay, it talks about energy savings. Well, I would

          9  invite the entire council to come with me to

         10  Whitman, Ingersol and Farragut Houses and you are

         11  going to see lights burning in the daytime.

         12                 I live in Independent Towers, okay,

         13  and I have a broken door that has been over a week.

         14  I have called five different units, okay, and

         15  nothing has happened.

         16                 Now, let me just try to answer some

         17  questions before I go further. It was brought up

         18  here about high economic concentration. Independence

         19  Towers, Tailor White and Williams Plaza in the

         20  Williamsburg Section of Brooklyn do have residents,

         21  including myself, who, thank God, have a little

         22  higher income level.

         23                 Unfortunately in these developments

         24  there is also a lot of illegal residents, that

         25  either the Housing Authority does know or doesn't
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          2  know or that they don't want to do anything about

          3  it.

          4                 Okay, now, I also heard mentioned

          5  about the concept of resident leaders selling them

          6  out or not selling them. Well, let me tell you, I am

          7  represented in what is called the RAB or the COP, by

          8  Diane Jackson of the Brooklyn West District.

          9                 In November of '98 there was a

         10  hearing when the first one-year plan was being

         11  proposed that the City Commission planning under

         12  Ruben Frankel and Diane Jackson said she does not

         13  want to testify, she is afraid to testify for

         14  retaliation. This is a person who is called our

         15  leader, my president, at Independence House Tenants

         16  Association, Mr. Solomn Lisa, has shut me out of all

         17  activities because I have criticized the management.

         18  I am not going to say, as they say in Yiddish (spoke

         19  in Yiddish), which means everything is good when you

         20  have to say foey, okay?

         21                 The Housing Authority needs strong

         22  leadership, and I believe that Chairman Martinez

         23  could get it on its road, however, it is a long way

         24  to be gone.

         25                 Now, ground cleanliness. I could take
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          2  you to places, they are talking there is improved

          3  ground cleanliness. It is not, you have graffiti

          4  galore, you have broken posts and chains, I blame

          5  the respective superintendents of developments.

          6                 I would like to take you to Jonathan

          7  Williams Plaza and look at a mail directory. You

          8  will have to bring Chancellor Rudy Crew to teach

          9  ABCs, the way that Mayoral directory is

         10  alphabetized, all right? I am being very honest. You

         11  have the letter M before the Z, it is a disgrace.

         12                 I once could have been an employee

         13  with the Housing Authority, I took exams for Housing

         14  Police Administrative Housing Assistant, but I chose

         15  another agency. I wrote my master's thesis on the

         16  history of the Housing.

         17                 I would like to say I thank you very

         18  much for this hearing. We need more hearings, and I

         19  would be glad if I told Councilman Spigner, since he

         20  knows me for the last three years, I testified at

         21  the Public Safety Committee hearing, as well as the

         22  Housing hearings, and I will be glad to go with any

         23  member of the Committee any time, except Saturdays

         24  and Jewish holidays, I will show you any development

         25  in the City what's wrong.
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          2                 I can take you to Tompkins Houses on

          3  the 13th floor, you have a fire hose that you can't

          4  open the door. It has been like this for eight

          5  months, okay? It is a disgrace. We need extreme

          6  oversight. We need more money, but the Housing

          7  Authority, I say this: If you can't deal with

          8  basics, if your employees can't wear a badge, I have

          9  strong, strong reservations, how can you implement a

         10  one-year plan, a five-year plan, or a daily plan?

         11                 In addition, you have some managers,

         12  like my manager Mr. Angle Diaz, who is acting as a

         13  puppet of the president of the tenants associations,

         14  and sends down tenants folders just for retaliation.

         15  So, again, I want to thank you very much. I will be

         16  glad to answer any questions, speak with you at any

         17  time you want, and I am going to say this publicly,

         18  I expect no retaliation from the New York City

         19  Housing Authority for testifying here today on my

         20  own time.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you. Mr.

         23  Garver, we are certainly grateful for you coming and

         24  sharing your insight with us. You have extensive

         25  knowledge which we will certainly avail ourselves of
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          2  at some future date.

          3                 Thank you so much for coming.

          4                 MR. GARVER: Okay.

          5                 Any questions?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: No, you have

          7  answered them all.

          8                 MR. GARVER: Okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Thank you.

         10                 MR. GARVER: Thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Mr. Ray

         12  Normandeau, followed by Steve Adams, and then we

         13  will conclude today's hearing.

         14                 MR. NORMANDEAU: Good afternoon. I am

         15  Ray Normandeau. I am press secretary of the Queens

         16  Bridge Tenant Council. What I would like to do is

         17  bolster some statements that were previously made,

         18  elaborate in some things that were mentioned and

         19  perhaps answer questions which were on the minds of

         20  the Council Members.

         21                 I would like to point out that the

         22  official tenant organization for Queensbridge Houses

         23  is the Queensbridge Tenants Association, a separate

         24  group, but with which we enjoy very good rapport.

         25                 Therefore, a day or two ago I called
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          2  Nina Adams, the President of the Queensbridge

          3  Tenants Association and I asked her if she would be

          4  attending this meeting today. She said what meeting?

          5  I said, well there is a hearing about public housing

          6  in the City Council Chambers. And she says, well, I

          7  don't know anything about it.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: Well, let me

          9  make clear. We did not make extensive outreach on

         10  this meeting today as we normally would have. We

         11  concede that. So, it is possible that a number of

         12  persons involved in this matter in these areas of

         13  public discussion were not notified. It is very

         14  possible.

         15                 MR. NORMANDEAU: But you would almost

         16  think that the Housing Authority would advise the

         17  president of the Tenants Association of the largest

         18  housing project in North America that such a hearing

         19  would be held. And it is not mentioned in the

         20  Housing Authority web site that the Chairperson

         21  would be here.

         22                 I think that indicates to what degree

         23  the Housing Authority tries to keep information from

         24  the tenants.

         25                 Regarding the hearing at Pace on
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          2  September 29th, the only way I found out about it is

          3  someone sent me E.mail telling me about it. I

          4  notified Nina Adams, President of the Tenants

          5  Association, and my wife Rita Fraser Normandeau, who

          6  is a vice president of the Tenant Association. She

          7  is sitting with me here today.

          8                 She went to attend, she was locked

          9  out for the obvious safety concerns that they simply

         10  could not have all of the people in there that

         11  should have been allowed in.

         12                 I think the Housing Authority really

         13  doesn't want the tenants to know too much what is

         14  happening.

         15                 To elaborate on that, I would like to

         16  mention, I also publish with my wife the Queens

         17  Vision Choir. We sent a Freedom of Information Act

         18  request to the Housing Authority in May for some

         19  information. They responded at that time they would

         20  let me know in due course if the information was

         21  available, and whether or not I would be allowed to

         22  have it.

         23                 I am still waiting.

         24                 Council Members, one or more

         25  mentioned, Pomonock Houses and Queensbridge Houses
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          2  regarding economics mix of tenants, beside possible

          3  economic mixes, maybe there could be more of a

          4  racial mix also.

          5                 I happen by coincidence to be looking

          6  at census figures for Pomonock Houses and

          7  Queensbridge Houses a few days ago, and these

          8  figures may not be entirely 100 percent accurate but

          9  is close.

         10                 Pomonock Houses, 30 percent black,

         11  Queensbridge 90 percent. This can't be an accident.

         12                 I would further like to mention that

         13  my wife and I are members of the Committee that

         14  allegedly screens prospective tenants, more a

         15  welcome wagon than anything else. And I have made a

         16  practice of asking the tenants this question. There

         17  are over 300,000 developments within New York City,

         18  how did you wind up getting hooked up with

         19  Queensbridge Houses? It turns out that almost every

         20  black tenant tells us that Queensbridge is the only

         21  choice they were given. None of them tell me they

         22  were allowed Pomonock Houses as a choice. What an

         23  amazing coincidence.

         24                 Regarding the Housing Authority

         25  Police, which has been mentioned by several people
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          2  here today, I would like to point out that in the

          3  past, and I believe this is still the case, there is

          4  a lot of federal funding from HUD going to what was

          5  then the Housing Authority police. I would like to

          6  know what is happening to that money, is it still

          7  coming to the City of New York, and is it being used

          8  at all for policing through the police bureau of the

          9  housing projects, or is it simply just gobbled up by

         10  the City of New York?

         11                 Settlement Houses were mentioned

         12  also, and how outside groups get to rent these

         13  facilities for little or no money. At Queensbridge

         14  Houses last year, the height of the heatwave, the

         15  Housing Authority turned off our hot water, the

         16  Settlement House would not allow the people to come

         17  in to cool off over the July 4th weekend on July the

         18  5th when the temperature of the heat index went to

         19  102, they would not let the tenants in, despite the

         20  fact the air conditioner was running 24 hours a day.

         21                 For the Y2K problem, potential Y2K

         22  problem, at our last Tenants Association meeting, a

         23  representative of our Settlement House said there

         24  was no plans to allow the tenants to come into the

         25  community center, in case there were things like
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          2  electrical outages, heat outages, et cetera.

          3                 Some tenants raised such a stink that

          4  now I think they will let tenants in.

          5                 I would also like to mention

          6  regarding raising stinks and things hitting the fan,

          7  since the Pace University meeting, the Housing

          8  Authority did notify all of us in Queensbridge

          9  regarding the subsequent meetings.

         10                 Distressed housing. Someone mentioned

         11  distressed housing, things that should be fixed

         12  including doors. Very unusual, the Housing Authority

         13  does pretty much what they want to do. Now, this is

         14  ten-years old, this letter. At that time HUD told me

         15  that there was a Housing Authority policy at that

         16  time to leave the lobby doors unlocked, unless

         17  tenants participated in a tenant patrol program.

         18  What HUD did not mention is that there was millions

         19  of money going from HUD to the Housing Authority to

         20  administer the tenant patrol program.

         21                 Oh, yes, regarding oversight of the

         22  Housing Authority, it seems to be there is very

         23  little really proper oversight, including the people

         24  who should be overseeing things. A former Housing

         25  Authority employee, now a whistle-blower, who also
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          2  sends me things by E.mail, was mentioning how when

          3  he would complain to the City Department of

          4  Investigation about things going wrong at the

          5  Housing Authority, things are not properly looked

          6  into. I know in the past that the Housing Authority

          7  itself, Jessie Mercado, a former inspector of the

          8  Housing Authority was let go after allegedly tipping

          9  off the subjects of undercover investigations. This

         10  was back in 1986 when the Queens Vision Choir at

         11  that time explained that John Gotty was a salesman

         12  for our plumbing when they installed 1,000 bathrooms

         13  at Queensbridge Houses.

         14                 But going back to this oversight in

         15  current today, I was looking in the Greenbook

         16  yesterday and I saw that the City Department of

         17  Investigations as a Deputy Commissioner for Housing,

         18  Housing Affairs and Welfare and a few other things,

         19  that same guy happens to be Inspector General of the

         20  Housing Authority.

         21                 Well, what good does it do if you are

         22  not happy with the Housing Inspector General to go

         23  to the City Department of Investigations, if the

         24  same guy is going to be looking at the problems.

         25                 That is the end of my statement, I
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          2  hope I have not been too long winded.

          3                 If you have any questions --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: You have been

          5  just perfect, Mr. Normandeau. I want to thank you so

          6  much for your testimony and your time and effort as

          7  a senate leader.

          8                 Keep up the good work.

          9                 MR. NORMANDEAU: Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON SPIGNER: I am told Mr.

         11  Adams is not in the house. Mr. Adams? Steve Adams?

         12                 Okay, ladies and gentlemen, I want to

         13  thank you for your time, testimony and your

         14  contribution to this discussion.

         15                 This meeting is adjourned.

         16                 (Hearing concluded at 2:04 p.m.)
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